Public Document Pack
Please Contact

Will Baines

Extension

01653 600666 Ext: x 43228

Date of Publication

Wednesday 11 November 2020

E Mail

will.baines@ryedale.gov.uk

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Thursday 19 November 2020 at 6.30 pm
Virtual meeting
IMPORTANT: The Council fully recognises and respects the role and importance of democratic
meetings and is committed to protecting the health and safety of Elected Members and Officers who
participate.
This meeting will be held virtually. The meeting will take place via Microsoft Teams and details of
how to join the meeting have been provided to Members of the Committee. A telephone dial-in
facility will also be available.
For the purpose of public transparency and accountability, the meeting will be live streamed online.
Details of how to access the live stream are available on the Council’s website.
The media will be able to report on proceedings from the live stream

Agenda
1

Apologies for absence

2

Minutes of the meeting held on 22 October 2020

3

Urgent Business

(Pages 3 - 8)

To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be
dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of
the Local Government Act 1972.

4

Declarations of Interest
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of
Conduct.
Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council
are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest. This requirement is
not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation.

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666
www.ryedale.gov.uk

continuing to do what matters for Ryedale

5

Chair's Announcements

6

Report of Everyone Active on the 2019 / 2020 Delivery of the Leisure Contract
for Ryedale District Council
(Pages 9 - 48)

7

Progress Report on the Implementation of the Climate Change Action Plan and
Associated Projects
(Pages 49 - 54)

8

Treasury Management Mid-Year Review

(Pages 55 - 70)

9

Customer Complaints and Compliments Q2 2020/21

(Pages 71 - 80)

10

Decisions from other Committees

(Pages 81 - 88)

Policy and Resources Committee held on 12 November 2020.

11

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

Public Document Pack

Agenda Item 2

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Virtual Meeting
on Thursday 22 October 2020
Present
Councillors Brackstone, Garbutt Moore, King, Middleton (Vice-Chairman), Oxley, Raine
and Raper (Chairman)
In Attendance
Will Baines, Mandy Burchell, Jonathan Dodsworth, Andrew Ellis, Anton Hodge, Barry
Khan, Gareth Mills, Michelle Oates, Christine Phillipson, Paul Taylor, Max Thomas and
Thilina De Zoysa

Minutes
1

Emergency Evacuation Procedure
The meeting was held virtually.

2

Apologies for absence
Apologies received from Councillors Cussons, Keal and Wass

3

Minutes of the meeting held on 1 October 2020
Decision
That the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny meeting held on 01
October 2020 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

Voting Record
6 For
0 Against
1 Abstention
4

Urgent Business
There were no items of urgent business.

5

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

6

Chair's Announcements
The Chair gave a vote of thanks for the outgoing Chair and Vice Chair of O &
S and thanked them for their hard work.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

1

Page 3

Thursday 22 October 2020

7

2019-20 Statement of Accounts
Considered – Report of the Chief Finance Officer (s151).
Anton thanked the Finance team for their hard work in producing the
Statement of Accounts 2019/20 and thanked external Audit for their support.
External Audit thanked the Finance team for their co-operation.
Decision
That members
- note the 2019-20 Statement of Accounts (Appendix A), including the Annual
Governance Statement
- note proposed letter of representation (Appendix B)
- note the External Auditors’ Audit Findings ISA 260 Document (Appendix C)

Voting Record
7 For
0 Against
0 Abstentions
8

Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Annual Report 2019/20
Considered – Report of the Chief Finance Officer (s151).
Anton thanked Connor Munroe and Stuart Cutts for their work on this report.
Decision
That Members:
a) note the results of the audit and counter fraud work undertaken in 2019/20.
b) note the overall opinion of the Head of Internal Audit regarding the overall
framework of governance, risk management and control operating within the
Council.
c) note the significant control issues identified through internal audit work in
2019/20.
d) note the outcome of the quality assurance and improvement programme
and
the confirmation that the internal audit service conforms with the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Voting Record
7 For
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

2

Page 4

Thursday 22 October 2020

0 Against
0 Abstentions
9

Internal Audit, Counter Fraud and Information Governance Plans 2020/21
Considered – Report of the Chief Finance Officer (s151).
Decision
That the internal audit plan for 2020/21 be approved and the counter fraud
and information governance plans be noted.

Voting Record
7 For
0 Against
0 Abstentions
10

Treasury Management Annual Report 2019-20
Considered – Report of the Chief Finance Officer (s151).
Decision
That Council is recommended to:
(i) Note the annual treasury management report for 2019/20; and
(ii) Approve the actual 2019/20 prudential and treasury indicators in this report.

Voting Record
7 For
0 Against
0 Abstentions
11

Update on Risk Management
Considered – Report of the Chief Finance Officer (s151).
Decision
That the Committee notes the contents of this report and comments
on the format and details of the Corporate Risk Register (Appendix 2).

Voting Record
6 For
0 Against
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

3

Page 5

Thursday 22 October 2020

0 Abstentions
12

Timetable of Meetings 2021-22
Considered – Report of the Head of Corporate Governance.

Decision
That the Committee notes the report.

13

Call-in: HR Policies
The Committee considered the call in from the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny
on 08 October 2020.
Decision
The Committee agreed that no further action to be taken .
Voting Record
3 For
2 Against
2 Abstentions

14

Appointment of Corporate Governance Standards Sub-Committee
Considered
Decision
That Cllrs Brackstone, Garbutt Moore and Raper be appointed with Cllrs
Middleton and Oxley as substitutes.

Voting Record
6 For
0 Against
0 Abstentions
15

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.
The Committee discussed potential areas for future scrutiny and suggested
the following to be considered.
 Universal Credit
 Covid
 Internal Appraisal System

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

4

Page 6

Thursday 22 October 2020



Business support post Covid

There being no other items of urgent business the meeting closed at 8.25pm.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

5

Page 7

Thursday 22 October 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8

Agenda Item 6

PART A:

MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

19 NOVEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

PROGRAMME DIRECTOR OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT,
BUSINESS AND PARTNERSHIPS
PHILLIP SPURR

TITLE OF REPORT:

REPORT OF EVERYONE ACTIVE ON THE 2019 / 2020
DELIVERY OF THE LEISURE CONTRACT FOR RYEDALE
DISTRICT COUNCIL

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To provide to Members a presentation by Everyone Active of their achievements within
the sixth year of the contract, highlighting areas of work and identifying future plans for
the next year.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)
Members note the report and the Everyone Active 2019 / 2020 Annual Report.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To ensure Members are kept informed of the progress of the Leisure Contract.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are no significant risks in receiving this report.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The 2020-2024 Council Plan: ‘We will promote health and wellbeing for all by offering
leisure facilities and access to physical activity. We will work with our leisure provider
and other partners to expand access to these opportunities and identify funding
streams that will support our aims’.

5.2

No external consultation has taken place on the production of this report or

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 9

19 NOVEMBER 2020

presentation.
REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

Sports and Leisure Management Ltd, (SLM) trading as Everyone Active, took over the
operation of the Council's leisure facilities in October 2014.

6.2

The 2019 / 2020 Annual Report is attached in Appendix A, which outlines current
activity and a presentation will be made to Members at the meeting by SLM.

6.3

The first Ryedale Sports Awards were held in February 2020 to showcase local sports
clubs and sporting individuals.

6.4

Upgrades, repairs and refurbishment activities have taken place at all three sites
including the installation of solar panels for heating at the Ryedale Swim and Fitness
Centre contributing to the Council’s climate change and carbon reduction targets.

6.5

The impact of COVID was beginning to be felt by EA from 20 March 2020 when sports
and leisure facilities were mandated to close. Beyond the Annual Report for 2019 /
2020 it is important to note that in order to support Everyone Active to reopen the
facilities following the national lockdown, a financial agreement was put in place for
July, August and September. Further discussions are ongoing regarding additional
support through to March 2021 and will be the subject of a further Policy and
Resources Committee paper, with the intention of a final decision at full Council in
December 2020.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
There are no financial implications. The report is for information only.
b)

Legal
None.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime &
Disorder)
None

Phillip Spurr
Programme Director of Economic Development, Business and Partnerships
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Amy Thomas, Principal Economic Development Officer
07425 533658
amy.thomas@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Include any referenced papers
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 10

19 NOVEMBER 2020

Location or web address

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 11

19 NOVEMBER 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNUAL REPORT
APRIL 2019 - MARCH 2020
RYEDALE DISTRICT
COUNCIL CONTRACT

Everyone Active manages these facilities in
partnership with Ryedale District Council.

Page 13
everyoneactive.com

facebook.com/everyoneactive

@everyoneactive

@everyoneactive

Contents
Page 3

Foreword

Page 4

1.0 Overview

Page 7

2.0 Refurbishment and Maintenance

Page 9

3.0 Environmental

Page 10

4.0 Attendance

Page 12

5.0 Training and Development

Page 15

6.0 Accidents / Health and Safety

Page 16

7.0 Customer Feedback

Page 19

8.0 Marketing / Pricing

Page 20

9.0 Sports Development Activity and Community Events

Page 21

10.0 Future Priorities

Page 22

Appendices

Page 14
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

2

Foreword
Sports & Leisure Management (SLM Ltd) trading as Everyone Active, were awarded a 10.5 year
contract to manage the following leisure facilities in partnership with Ryedale District Council:
•

Derwent Swim & Fitness Centre

•

Ryedale Sport Centre (dual-use facility at Lady Lumley’s School)

•

Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre

The contract commenced on 1st October 2014 and will run until 31st March 2025.
I would like to take this opportunity to offer a special mention to the following individuals for their
continued support to the leisure contract, the development of sport and leisure services within
the District of Ryedale; as well as just for their endless passion and enthusiasm:
Mr Phillip Spurr - Program Director for Economic Development, Business and Partnership,
Ryedale District Council
Mrs Beckie Bennett - Delivery and Frontline Services Lead, Ryedale District Council
Mrs Rosy Smith - Property Surveyor, Ryedale District Council
Mrs Jos Holmes - Senior Commissioning Officer, Ryedale District Council
Mr Martin Miles - Area Manager – North, Everyone Active
Mr Stuart Cleary - Deputy Head Teacher, Lady Lumley Secondary School
Thank you all for a successful 2019-20 and I look forward to continuing to deliver a sustainable
leisure service in Ryedale District Council in 2020-21.
Jon Bird
General Manager
Everyone Active – Ryedale Contract

Page 15
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

3

1.0 Overview
QUEST Accreditation
Ryedale Swim & Fitness has completed QUEST Plus achieving an overall ‘Good’ after returning
for the mystery visit the year after the full accreditation, to complete the process. The assessor
complimented the colleagues on the progress made and the achievements at the centre. QUEST
is a leisure industry standard for the management of leisure facilities and provides a vital tool for
bench marking and continuous improvement.
Everyone Active are engaged in the Quest Quality Scheme for Sport and Leisure. This includes
benchmarking in qualitative issues such as community engagement and quantitative issues such
as cleanliness and quality of swimming lessons. [More information available on https://questnbs.
org/module-guidance#QuestFacilities]

Internal Health and Safety Monitoring
All 3 sites have now been through the set of internal health and safety audits with Derwent Swim
& Fitness scoring 98.1%, Ryedale Swim & Fitness 98.1% and Ryedale Sports Centre scoring 99.3%
which is excellent for the contract and in the top leisure contracts for the East Region. This also
demonstrates an increase in compliance from 2018-19.

Refurbishment of Ryedale Sport Centre Gym
In May 2019, in partnership with lady Lumley Secondary School, we completed an upgrade of the
equipment and facilities at Ryedale Sport Centre. In consultation with Mr S Cleary, Deputy Head
Teacher, we completed the following upgrades:
•

Purchase of a new Technogym Smyth’s Machine. This weights based machine is more
restrictive than free weights, but just as functional. Thus allowing safety of the school users
during the day, as well as an increased offering for the community users on an evening.

•

All of the cardiovascular equipment was removed and replaced with newer equipment which
held greater functionality. This introduced sound and audio to the treadmills as well as the
option to better utilise the Everyone Active App on these machines.

•

We created a dedicated free weights area with new matting, bench and larger scope of free
weight sizes for greater functionality. This area was introduced inform of the mirrored area to
support posture and to assist in those all-important selfies for the students.

•

We introduced a dedicated stretch area with softer matting in a clear areas of the gym. This
replaced the temporary matting and again allows better functionality of the gym.

•

In January 2020, we invested in virtual technology to allow the introduction of Virtual Group
Cycling classes in the dedicated group cycling studio at Ryedale Sport Centre. This was due
to be launched in March 2020, but has been delayed due to COVID-19. This will enhance the
offerings again, and allow continual group exercise classes to be on offer; following on from
customer feedback and requests.

Page 16
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

4

GP Referral & ESCAPE Pain Project
Following the re-launch of the GP Referral program in February 2019, we have seen significant
growth in the demand for this service and have subsequently increased the number of hours
available for contact with our dedicated instructor. The scheme has seen 28 people complete the
12 week scheme since re-launch in February 2019, with a number more referrals which have been
put on hold during the COVID-19 pandemic.
Off the back of the great work of our GP Referral instructor Matt, we were successful in securing
funding from North Yorkshire Sport to deliver the ESCAPE Pain Project in the Ryedale District.
ESCAPE-pain is a 6 week, 12 session rehabilitation programme for people with chronic hip and
knee joint pain. It is a well-recognised national programme, run by highly professional ESCAPEPain trained instructors. The Health Benefits can include: Improvement in pain, physical and mental
well-being, Increased self-confidence, less reliance on medication and can help reduce the need for
surgery. This scheme has seen a total of 17 people complete the program in the last 12 months.

Ryedale District Sports Awards 2020
February 2020 saw the first ever Ryedale District Sports Awards. This was the final piece in a
12 month club and sports development program which Everyone Active delivered. The awards
evening at The Forest & Vale Hotel in Pickering welcomed over 100 guests and nominees from
the Ryedale community. The awards evening was led by the guest speaker Aimee Willmott, an
English competitive swimmer who has represented Great Britain at the Olympic Games, FINA
world championships and European championships. A number of local sporting stars were
showcased and the category winners were as follows:
Winner

Runner Up

Coach of the Year

Simon Baum

Paul Lee

Volunteer of the
Year

Lesley Foxton

Howard Mudd &
Claudine Evans

Club of the Year

Ryedale Swim Club

Thornton Le Dale
Football

Team of the Year

Malton School U16 Girls
Football Team

Just for Girls Softball
Cricket

Jnr Sports Person
of the Year

Morwenna Talling

George Baldwin

Sports Person of
the year with a
Disability

Eric Cibien

Sports Person of
the year

Geoff Wynn

Brandon Cowton

Strongest
Community
Engagement

Just for Girls Softball
Cricket

Pickering Ladies
Hockey Club

Best Use of Social
Media

Great Habton Cricket
Club

Tracey Hick (Softball
Cricket)

Jack Peace

Brian Edmond & Jessica
Mayho

EA Outstanding
Achievement
Award

Page 17
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

5

Coronavirus Pandemic
In the latter part of February 2020, the leisure service was challenged with the evolving global
pandemic of COVID-19. As a result of this, Everyone Active started to implement additional social
distancing measures such as putting gym machines out of order, removing poolside seating,
increasing cleaning and installing hand sanitiser stations. As a result of this social distancing action
and the decrease in customer confidence across the country, attendance was significantly impacted;
until the UK Government forced a closure of all UK Leisure Facilities on Friday 20th March 2020. At
the time of writing this report, there is still no date in sight for re-opening the leisure services.

Page 18
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

6

2.0 Refurbishment and Maintenance
2.1 Refurbishment
Derwent Swim and Fitness
•

Repairs have been made to the pool tank and pipework to repair historic leaks and ensure the
pool remains operational.

•

Significant investment into the Lift at the leisure centre has taken place, bringing it back to
required legislative standards as well as minimise the down time recorded.

•

New accessible friendly hand bike in the gym, which can be used from a wheelchair or a
seated position.

•

Upgrades to the pool chemical dosing system to reduce the amount of energy and chemical
required to maintain the PWTAG guided standards.

Ryedale Swim and Fitness
•

Refurbishment of the Air Handling units, internal workings which supply the changing rooms
and pool hall.

•

Partial refurbishment of the leisure centres CHP (Combined Heat and Power) unit, to sustain a
further 10,000 hours of usage.

•

Issues were encountered in January 2020 with the collapse of the ceiling in the free weights
are of the gym. As a result, refurbishment and major maintenance work around the leisure
centre was put on hold while a plan for the roof replacement was drawn together.

Ryedale Sports Centre
•

Refurbishment of the Gym, with £10,000 worth of new and replaced equipment, as well as
the introduction of a dedicated free weights area and a stretch area.

•

Replacement of climbing PPE (Personal Protective Equipment) to allow instructors to continue
to manage and deliver the climbing offering.

These works have all been completed during the last 12 months and has been well received by
customers, colleagues and delivery partners alike.

Page 19
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

7

2.2 Reactive Maintenance
We have an Area Maintenance team and have a dedicated Maintenance Technician in partnership
with Whitby Leisure Centre and Scarborough Sports Village, who is supported by a further
Technician and a Technical Manager based from Middlesbrough. We have local crafts man,
plumbers and electricians for the contract which we use for any urgent work that the contract
Technical Assistant is unable to complete. This has ensured a swift response to the work
requested on our ‘Workbased Asset Management’ system.
We continue to work to our Planned Preventative Maintenance Programme for scheduled
maintenance through our local and national suppliers.
Please see Appendix 1 for Ryedale and Derwent’s PPM schedules.

Page 20
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

8

3.0 Environmental
Each centre has a ‘Carbon Reduction Champion’ who is tasked with managing an Energy Action
Plan to reduce our energy usage and maximise recycle strategies. The Carbon Reduction
Champion attends regular company training via our online Absorb platform. We have energy
actions boards in each centre informing customers of the centres plans to reduce waste and
ensure we are operating efficiently in the local community.
All colleagues undergo regular training regarding how to be more energy efficient and we actively
encourage customers as well through the introduction of new internal recycling bins at Ryedale
Swim & Fitness Centre, and monthly campaigns to ‘reduce, reuse or recycle’.
In addition SLM has attained ISO14001 in 2018. This is an Environmental Management System
which provides a structure for measuring and improving an organisations environmental impact,
and is nationally accredited through a rigorous audit procedure. This accreditation is due for
renewal in 2020 to ensure we are maintaining these standards.

3.1 Ryedale District Council Climate Emergency.
In response to Ryedale District Council declaring a climate emergency, Everyone Active
has worked, in partnership with the council, to ensure the leisure facilities are operating as
environmentally consciously as possible. Below are some of the ways in which Everyone Active
and the leisure facilities in the district are working towards this:
Reduce
•

In order to reduce travel, Everyone Active has invested in an enhance Microsoft package
which has moved many meetings onto TEAMs, reducing the total travel of colleagues. This
has seen a reduction of over 1,500 miles travelled.

•

Gas and electricity consumption has reduced following investment into an ‘Adapt©’ portal to
track demand and allow leisure centres to re-act as required.

•

Investment in a stronger customer centric mobile App and Website has allowed us to remove
paper timetables and reduce marketing flyers. This has saved over 22,000 sheets of A4 paper
so far.

Re-use
•

The leisure facilities has removed plastic overshoes in all three facilities and replaced it
with a new cleaning regime which is supplemented with period deep cleans from external
contractors. This has removed over 10,000 plastic shoe covers per year.

•

The upgrade of the CHP unit and Solar Heating at Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre has allowed
us to re-use heat and generated energy to supplement the buildings operations. This is
predicted to save over 3.5 tonnes of C02 per year.

•

We have started to remove single use plastic from our retail products, vending machines
and gym clean stations. These are now supplemented with re-usable products such as water
bottles and gym towels.

Recycle
•

We have introduced better internal recycling bins at Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre to
support colleagues and customers in understanding of what we can recycle. This has seen use
reduce our general waste disposal capacity reduce from 2960l per week to 2120l per week.

Page 21
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

9

4.0 Attendance
4.1 Overall Attendance
We have had 206,483 visits during the last 12 months across the three leisure centres
Apr 16 to
Mar 17

Apr 17 to Mar
18

Apr 18 to
Mar 19

103,636

103,779

104,834

103,222*

-1,612

Derwent Swim &
Fitness Centre

84,215

83,692

84,832

85,367*

535

Ryedale Sport Centre

26,621

24,871

25,010

24,365*

-645

214,472

212,342

214,676

212,954*

-1,722

Ryedale Swim &
Fitness Centre

Total

Apr 19 to
Mar 20

Year
Variance

*Last 11 days of March estimated, on average daily visits.
Please see Appendix 2 for this year (April 19 to March 20) more in-depth attendance figures.

4.2 Derwent Swim and Fitness
We have seen a significant decrease in the number of unique attendances at this facility in 201920. This is mainly down to being hit with the COVID-19 pandemic which started to impact the
business from the latter part of February 2020, in addition, we had a period of closure on the
main pool for 3 days to investigate leaks in the main pool tank.

4.3 Ryedale Swim and Fitness
We have seen a significant decrease in the number of unique attendances at this facility in 201920. This is mainly down to the collapse of the ceiling in the facility at what is a peak month of
activity for the leisure industry. In addition to this, we have been hit with the COVID-19 pandemic
which started to impact the business from the latter part of February 2020. Attendance for
Quarter 1 to Quarter 3 was on par with previous years.

Page 22
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

10

4.4 Ryedale Sports Centre
We have seen a significant decrease in the number of unique attendances at this facility in 201920. This is mainly down to being hit with the COVID-19 pandemic which started to impact the
business from the latter part of February 2020. Attendance for Quarter 1 to Quarter 3 was on par
with previous years.

4.5 Total number of unique people attending the leisure facilities
We have seen a significant decrease in the number of unique attendances at this facility in 201920. This is mainly down to being hit with the COVID-19 pandemic which started to impact the
business from the latter part of February 2020. Attendance for Quarter 1 to Quarter 3 was on par
with previous years.
Ryedale Swim &
Fitness Centre

Derwent Swim &
Fitness Centre

Ryedale
Sport Centre

April

1910

1187

371

May

1831

1189

320

June

1591

1213

302

July

1939

1234

320

August

2105

1263

318

1817

1134

243

1660

1103

301

November

1518

1017

246

December

1313

863

229

January

1322

1140

362

February

1540

1084

337

March

1284

995

253

Average

1653

1119

300

September
October

Ryedale District from 2017: 54,311
Total Average Attendance: 3,072
5.65% of the council population engaged with.

Page 23
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

11

5.0 Training and Development
We have a training development plan for colleagues employed within the company, as well as
specific training for the Ryedale Contract. This is delivered through a combination of internal and
external training;

5.1 External Delivery Partners
Lifetime Training

NVQ Level 2, 3 & 4 Delivery in Fitness (Personal Training)
NVQ Level 2 Apprenticeships (Leisure Operations and Customer Service)
NVQ Level 2 & 3 in Customer Service

Institute of Swimming Swim England Level 1 Assistant Swimming Teacher
Swim England Level 2 Swimming Teacher
Swim England Adult & Child CPD
Swim England Safeguarding in Sport CPD
Swim England CPDs (Skills and stroke development sessions)
IOS Pool Plant Operator Level 2
IOS Pool Plant Operator Level 3
Q.D.O.S.

Customer Care
Complaint Handling

Sales Doctor

Sales and Customer Engagement Training (over 12 months)

IQL

Rookie Lifeguarding Instructor Training
National Pool Lifeguard Qualification
IQL Level 2 AED Qualification
IQL Level 2 Anaphylaxis Qualification
IQL Level 2 Emergency First Aid at Work
National Pool Lifeguard Trainer Assessor Qualification
National Pool Supervisor Qualification

Page 24
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

12

5.2 Investors in People
Everyone Active, as a company, retained its Investors in People accreditation in 2018 which we
have now held for over 25 years. Following from this, Mr Miles (Area Manager) is working on a
project for the East Region around leadership development to ensure a values and leader lead
business for the future.

5.3 Internal Stand Alone Training
In 2018, Everyone Active has fully rolled out an online training platform for all colleagues to
support ongoing training, CPD delivery and to allow management to push updated to colleagues
when required. This is delivered through our system called ‘Absorb’. We also offer internal training
to all colleagues for their job role in line with Everyone Actives’ commitment to Investors in
People. Below is an example of some of the courses which are offered to our colleagues:
•

IOSH Managing Safely

•

Duty Manager Training

•

APM Managing People and Employing People

•

Legionella Awareness Training

•

RLSS UK Rookie Lifeguard Instructor

•

National Pool Supervisor Qualification.

5.4 Lifeguard Training
All our lifeguards and Duty Managers at Ryedale and Derwent Pool, are RLSS National Pool
Lifeguard Qualified and as addition they have now all competed additional training in the use of
defibrillators. All lifeguards must attend training once a month to refresh their knowledge and
updates in line with NPLQ Generation 9 ongoing training plans.
Training records available for inspection at Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre and Derwent Swim &
Fitness Centre by the Ryedale District Council Client Officer.

5.5 Swimming Lesson Qualifications
All of our Swim Teachers are now Swim England Level 2 Swimming Teacher Qualified. We are
in the process of upskilling and training more colleagues in Swimming Teaching to maintain our
lesson quality and to support a scheme of growth in the delivery of School Swimming Lessons.
A number of our swimming teachers have been upskilled in CPDs such a ‘Rookie Lifeguard’ and
‘Junior Fitness’ to support the launch of new exit pathways on our swim scheme.

5.6 Health and Safety
Each site has a designated ‘site safety co-ordinator’ who has been trained in IOSH Managing
Safely qualification, in addition to a one day in house course on the role of a Site Safety
Coordinator. These designated colleagues support the General Manager in the Health & Safety
Management at the respective three leisure centres.
All Duty Managers and Designated Key Holders are either Level 3 First Aid at Work Trained, or
hold a valid National Pool Lifeguard Qualification. Those Duty Managers and Designated Key
Holders at Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre and Derwent Swim & Fitness Centre also hold a Level 2
Pool Plant Operator Certificate as a minimum.

Page 25
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

13

5.7 Fitness Colleagues
All the fitness team have undertaken the NVQ Level 3 in Personal Training through our external
training provider. This is to support our new business model of growing Personal Training delivery
and supporting Fitness & Health member’s personal objectives.
In addition to this, we have upskilled a colleague on Level 4 Chronic Lower Back and Exercise
Referral to support the launch of our GP Referral Scheme across the Ryedale District Council area.

5.8 Apprentices
We had 2 apprentices which were undertaking various different apprenticeship schemes which
are working full time within the company in different job roles. Our activity apprentices have
become lifeguards within the company and have also completed their Level 1 and 2 Swim Teacher
Qualifications. These colleagues have a great impact on the business and have brought some
great enthusiasm into the daily operations of the business.
We currently have a job advert within the company to employ more apprenticeships to give them
the fantastic opportunity as a stepping stone for greater success.

5.9 Development
We have identified key colleagues from each centre who show enthusiasm and the characteristics
to become managers or train to develop within their careers with Everyone Active. Two
colleagues have been internally promoted from their positions into management roles within the
contract, while a further two colleagues have left the contract to further enhance their own skills
and abilities in more senior positions. We are also in the process of mapping out annual Personal
Development Reviews where we will identify and plan colleague development pathways, to help
the business and colleagues achieve their objectives.

5.10 Colleague of the month
We do this every month along with a colleague event bi-annually, where the whole contract
comes together to take part. The events normally take part at the sports centre and allows
colleagues from all three centres to get together and for the managers to update the colleagues
on business activity at the same time.
In addition to this, managers nominate colleagues at each site, on a monthly basis, to be
colleague of the money and receive a reward for their efforts of going above and beyond for the
business and respective leisure facility.

5.11 Apprentice Levy
As part of our commitment to training and developing colleagues across the whole business,
we have developed a new in-house Apprentice program which will be headed up by a newly
appointed ‘Apprentice Manager’ who replaces our exiting ‘Training manager’. As part of this, we
will be moving aware from Lifetime Training and delivering the courses ourselves to allow for a
better insight into actually leisure operations for the colleagues. This new scheme has also seen
better utilisation of the Apprentice Levy with the Norths Area manager enrolling on an MBA at
Teesside University and our Regional Sales manager attending a Foundation Degree in Digital
marketing at the University of Derby.
As the benefits of these changes are seen, more colleagues will be supported through different
education channels to ensure we have the best colleagues in our business and that we keen
supporting them in all of their ventures.

Page 26
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

14

6.0 Accidents / Health and Safety
6.1 Accident Summary
Both Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre and Derwent Swim & Fitness Centre are achieving the
company KPI for accidents per 10,000 visits of under 5.0. The detailed accident reduction
strategies have been implemented and are working well, with a strong proactive approach from
colleagues and a very prompt response from the designated Site Safety Coordinators to reduce
the potential for accidents. All three sites have seen an improvement in the number of accidents
per 10,000 from the previous year (April 19 – March 20) see table below.
April 16 March 17
Per 10,000

April 17 March 18
Per 10,000

April 18 March 19
Per 10,000

April 19 March 20
Per 10,000

Ryedale Sports Centre

2.2

9.6

6.6

5.9

Ryedale Swim and Fitness

2.6

2.3

2.0

1.9

Derwent Swim and Fitness

2.6

1.9

1.8

0.9

Site

Please see attached at Appendix 3 the Accident Analysis sheet for all three sites.

6.2 Internal Health and Safety Audits
All three sites have now been through the second set of internal Health & Safety inspections from
our Regional Health, Safety and Quality Manager with sites achieving some excellent results.
Site

2017 - 18

2018 - 19

2019-20

Ryedale Swim and Fitness Centre

99.0%

99.2%

98.1%

Derwent Swim and Fitness Centre

92.0%

96.8%

98.1%

Ryedale Sport Centre

98.5%

97.2%

99.3%

Following a reduction in the score at Ryedale Sport centre in 2018-19, it is really positive to see
that the team at this site have really excelled themselves and even scored 100% in one of their
audits in 2019-20.
The company wide and local management plan for Health & Safety is working well, with a clear
focus from the General Manager. Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre was externally audited for
Health and Safety by ‘QUEST’ (Sports England Benchmarking Body), and Achieved ‘QUEST –
VERY GOOD’.

6.3 Safeguarding
After a safeguarding concern was raised in relation to Ryedale Naturist Club, Everyone Active
under took a review of the centre, processes and the clubs processes. The procedures were also
reviewed as part of the QUEST Assessment where we score ‘EXCELLENT’. The General Manager
also now regularly attends meetings with Ryedale District Council to support knowledge share
and to align with the councils objectives.

Page 27
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

15

7.0 Customer feedback
7.1 Customer Feedback
Across all the centres we collect customer feedback via the following methods:•

Customer Comments Cards displayed in the centre receptions

•

Verbal feedback via colleagues who are recorded in a log

•

E-mail the manager via the website or ‘Atreemo’

•

Social Media

•

Mystery Shopper scheme with ‘QDOS Mystery Shopper Ltd’ and ‘Right Directions’.

•

Through email questionnaires, linked directly into Single Customer View.

Launched in August 2016, SLM has made a significant investment into a new software package
called ‘Single Customer View’. This provides a new method for providing feedback. Single
Customer View guarantees that a customer will always get a response within 48 hours. If a
customer does not get a response, then the comment is escalated to the next Line Manager. The
software also allows us to look at the feedback and identify trends in comments.
Everyone Active now transition all feedback and enquiries through this software with email
responses from questionnaires, social media ‘reviews’ and manual uploaded comments going
through this. This supports our ability to ‘Plan, Act and Review’ on anything which can enhance
the customer experience, as well as allow our customers to receive a suitable response, in a
suitable time frame.

7.2 Customer Complaints Procedure
Following requests from Ryedale District Council, a formally documented customer complaints
procedure for the Ryedale District Council Contract was created. This is outlined below in brief,
and a full copy can be found in Appendix 4. The following procedure will be followed to allow
customers multiple avenues for providing customer comments to the respective leisure centre, as
well as highlight any escalations that may be required.

7.3 Customer Comments
Customer comments are available to view on site by the Ryedale District Council Client Officer
upon request. Due to the volume and variety of feedback and enquiries received, we have
collated an overview for the three facilities within the contract.
Many of the customers will only make comments or contact us with negative feedback. However
we are now encouraging customers in the centre to provide all feedback with the chance to win
Red Letter Days, and incentivising colleagues through feedback collection KPIs.
Please see Appendix 4 for a summary of the feedback we have received.

Page 28
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

16

A selection of positive comments we have received:
Positive comments received:
Enjoyed a lovely swim without the lane ropes and signs. Hopes they dont return has been
coming for years and was a great improvement
Catherine has recently moved to the area and came in to check the pool and gym for her
husband before signing up.
She commented on how nice the pool and gym were to have as an amenity in a small market
town and they intended to come and enjoy the facility in the near future and will join. She will
arrange PT for her husband who is in the army and has a pre-existing ankle injury.
Bethany and partner Oliver commented on how nice the pool was and that Alice would be
starting Adult and Child lessons shortly.
The facilities are old and horrible. Serious investment is required to bring them anywhere near
a good standard. However, the staff are amazing and the reason everyone comes. They take
the time to know people, what is happening in their lives and always go above and beyond to
help and support each customers. The staff are the biggest asset and best part of attending the
swimming pool. Love you all. Thank you.
The Activity Manager is a great asset to your business. He has said he will be looking at getting
us an Annual Tennis Membership and that you will also be looking to restart holiday activities
from the summer. Great stuff! It’s about time kids had things to do in the summer.
A selection of negative comments we have received:
What the customer said:

What we did:

Due to awaiting contractor’s delivery of a new,
Please can you raise the water temperature
customer made Heat exchanger; the main pool
of the pool. It’s very cold and makes a swim
at Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre was cold for a
unpleasant. I’m a polio survivor and therefore feel period of 6 weeks. This has now been replaced
the cold more keenly than most. Showers are
and a heat exchanger replacement has been
lovely and warm and staff friendly. Thank you.
built into the 2 year PPM schedule as a result of
the areas hard water and scale build up.
Hi I’m just asking to see if anything is happening
about the state of the gym ? The facilities
are good but the state of the building is very
concerning ,water has been coming in though
the ceiling for at least 12 months now and this
morning I came for a work out only to be told
the weight room only had half the room as usual
as the ceiling had fallen in which was going to
happen as nothing seems to be happening to
try and fix the issue. There’s water also coming
down onto electrical appliances.

In partnership with Ryedale District Council,
a temporary ceiling was installed as well as
electrical inspections carried out for safety.
A full roof replacement and internal ceiling
repairs are scheduled to be carried out in 2020.

Page 29
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

17

What the customer said:

What we did:

I am a current member and have left feedback
before but nobody bothers to reply. I would
like someone to address the issue of lack of
classes at the centre. When I first joined 2
years ago there were lots of classes I could
book on to, but they have been constantly
deminishing and now there are only 4 nights
when there is anything I can do. I feel having
paid my membership up front I am now not
getting the service I signed up for.

As a part of the ever changing culture and
demand of leisure services, Group Exercise
classes are seeing ever decreasing occupancy
levels across the UK. We regularly review
the classes to ensure they remain relevant
and instructors are delivering to expected
standards. However, classes are removed when
they are no longer viable to run. Everyone
Active memberships cover all facilities and
services, so the pools, gyms and sauna are also
included as part of your membership price.

The pool has been uncomfortably cold for my
last four visits (over two weeks). This rather
spoils the enjoyment of swimming, and limits
the time I can spend in the pool, as it causes
me to get more cramp.

Due to awaiting contractor’s delivery of a new,
customer made Heat exchanger; the main pool
at Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre was cold for a
period of 6 weeks. This has now been replaced
and a heat exchanger replacement has been
built into the 2 year PPM schedule as a result of
the areas hard water and scale build up.

Is there a technical problem, or is there a
strategy to heat the pool less?

Due to a contracted member of the swim
teacher team being off on sickness leave, we
We have had a different swimming teacher now are working to cover all swimming lessons
for the last 4 weeks and I do not feel that anyone in line with the information we are receiving
cares about the level of progression that my child from the colleague and medical professionals.
is receiving at Malton. Why can’t we just have
The progression of your child will be tracked
the same teacher we had before Christmas?
through Aqua Passport as normal and we hope
your normal teacher will be returning from
sickness leave in the near future.

7.4 Customer Feedback Rankings
Table below shows feedback ratings as entered by the customer:
Site

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

None

Derwent Swim and Fitness Centre

0

1

1

1

0

0

1

0

2

0

1

8

Ryedale Sport Centre

1

1

6

1

0

1

3

1

1

2

0

24

Ryedale Swim and Fitness Centre

2

2

0

1

0

0

2

0

3

0

0

6

3

4

7

3

0

1

6

1

6

2

1

38

Page 30
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

18

8.0 Marketing / Pricing
We have actively marketed the leisure centres over the last 12 months. Through a variety
of media, including: Newspapers, Leaflets, E-mail, SMS messages, Social Media, Internal
Banners and External Banners. In addition to this we also actively participate as well as in-reach
competitions such as:
•

Design a swimming safety banner

•

Design a swimming cap

•

Draw you and your friends having fun swimming.

We displayed all the children’s creations in prominent public areas for the public to see, for the
swimming cap designs.
In 2019-20 there has been a further, large focus on the use of social media, and building a
community centred social media presence. This has been done with a number of paid for and
targeted social media campaigns which has allowed us to target specific demographics.
Please see Appendix 5 for the Ryedale Contracts Marketing Collection samples.

8.1 Activity Pricing
We have maintained all our pricing in 2019-20 to remain attractive to customers, and competitive
to other local competitors. Listed below are the local competitor prices for general swimming
(our biggest Pay as you Go product). As you will notice the prices in Ryedale are particularly
competitive, while being the cheapest in the North Yorkshire County.
Scarborough

£4.75 Adult
£3.50 Junior / Concession

Selby

£4.10 Adult
£2.90 Junior / Concession

Hambleton

£4.75 Adult
£3.50 Junior / Concession

Ryedale

£4.20 Adult
£2.60 Junior / Concession

York

£5.10 Adult
£3.85 Junior / Concession

We offer a wide range of concessions and discounts to organisations and individuals to
encourage them to take part in activity, and regularly offer free or discounted sessions to help
break down barriers for participation through e-guest passes and activity passes at events we
attend as part of our outreach program.

Page 31
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

19

9.0 Sports Development Activity and
Community Events
9.1 Sports Developments
Throughout the year, the whole team within the contract, from swim teachers, activity leaders
and sales; have all attended and supported school sports days. The team supported the delivery
of events as well as engagement with the schools with the Bee Active mascot and free gifts for
those who participated well and supported the wider active schools ethos.
This was a widely supported project which allowed the specialism in sports to be handed out
around the community schools with the ability to then sign post into the leisure centre settings
afterwards.

9.2 Sporting Champions
Everyone Active’s Sporting Champions provides funding and support for talented athletes from
across the UK. Launched in 2016 and supported by one of the country’s most recognized sporting
talents, Colin Jackson CBE, has already helped many athletes on their journey to become a
national and international sporting success. With access to over 140 of Everyone Active’s leisure
centers across the country, athletes on the scheme are able to use the highest standard of
facilities for their ongoing training. Becoming a sporting hero comes with a financial burden and,
for many of our athletes, they will also be provided with funding support to help pay for training,
equipment, travel and competition costs.
We have had 2 talented individuals from Derwent Swim & Fitness and 7 from Ryedale Swim &
Fitness who received a bronze sponsorship package join the scheme which received a free 1 year
membership to help them keep their fitness levels. In addition to this, we had 1 talent individual to
secure silver membership he received £500 and a free 1 years membership.

9.3 Club Development
We developed a 12 month Club Development Strategy which will be used to help kick start a
strong foundation for the local area. This included an initial open meeting for any clubs, sports
groups and recreational groups to attend. This meeting allowed us to identify the issues and
collective trends which are being seen across the area, and helped us plan events and activities to
improve this over the 12 months leading to the sports awards in February 2020.
This program was extremely successful and was headed up by Everyone Actives Activity Manager
who worked in partnership with North Yorkshire Sport to gain funded projects and arrange local
training solutions for the local clubs in relation to their demands. Initial conversations have also
started with some key partners in Ryedale to bring together a sporting consortium to oversee and
support Sport and Club development in the district.

Page 32
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

20

10.0 Future Priorities
The coming year provides a host of new challenges and opportunities with the impact of
COVID-19 on the business, industry and locality. With a settled team in place and a clear plan
of action our key priority this year is to re-build our business in the ‘new normal’ and ensure we
have a whole host of sports and leisure activities for all demographics of the Ryedale District
Community.

10.1 Club Partnerships and Development
Forge stronger relations with all key partners, user groups and stakeholders to enable them to
progress and continue to grow. COVID-19 will impact all clubs and user groups, and everyone
Active will work to facilitate their return and growth in the ‘new normal’.
Our aim is to work further with the clubs to build stronger relationships locally by regular
meetings, supporting them with funding, sponsorships as well as offering advice making sure our
centres remain the heart of the community. The pandemic will bring everyone together for the
overall greater good of the communities we operate in.
A key focus will also be placed on supporting the two swimming clubs with training, water
space and time allocations and linking the Everyone Active Swim Scheme exit routes into their
competitive pathways through Swim England.

10.2 Relaunch of Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre
Following the ceiling collapse and the long period of facility closure, we aim to relaunch the
Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre site once the investment works from Ryedale District Council
have been completed. Through strong customer reassurance activity, we will ensure a safe
and COVID secure environment for our customers to return; while also working to bring new
customers to the facilities to support Ryedale District council’s objectives of an Active Ryedale.

10.3 Recover from COVID-19 impacts
Work in partnership with Ryedale District Council and other partners to re-open, re-launch and
re-start a leisure provision within the District.

Page 33
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

21

Appendices
Page 20

Appendix 1 - PPM

Page 23

Appendix 2 - Attendance Data

Page 24

Appendix 3 - Accident Analysis

Page 25

Appendix 4 - Customer Feedback

Page 29

Appendix 5 - Ryedale Marketing

Page 34
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

22

Appendix 1 - PPM
Ryedale Sport Centre
Location

Area & Type

Service
Frequency

Service
Contract

Company

Whole Building

PAT Testing

Annual

Yes

HMC
Compliance

Group Cycling
Studio

Air Conitioning

Bi-Annually

Yes

AirCon
Group

Group Cycling
Studio

Keiser Bikes

Bi-Annually

Yes

Keiser
Service Ltd

Unit 3, Hampton Industrial Estate,
Hampton Street, Tetbury,
Gloucestershire, GL8 8LD

Gym Equipment

Annual

No

Precor Ltd

Theta Building, Lyon Way, Frimley,
Surrey, GU16 7ER

Sports Hall

Bouncy Caste

Annual

Yes

Air Space
Solutions
Ltd

17, Tafarnaubach Industrial Estate,
Tafarnaubach, Tredegar NP22 3AA

Sports Hall

Soft Play & Sports
Equipment

Annual

Yes

Sport and
Play

Sport & Play Ltd, Stone Cross Barn,
Stone Cross Business Park, Laughton,
East Sussex, BN8 6BN

Contact Details

Fitness Suite

Contact Details
HMC Compliance Ltd, Unit 4 Crowhurst Hop
Farm Bullen Lane East Peckham
Tonbridge Kent TN12 5LP
Unit 52 Dukesway, Thornaby,
Stockton-on-Tees TS17 9LT

Derwent Swim & Fitness Centre
Location

Area & Type

Service
Frequency

Service
Contract

Company

Reception

"Automatic Doors
2 Auto front Doors"

Annual

Yes

Kone

Kone, Global House Street Place, Fox Lane
Norton, Chertsey, Surrey, KT16 9HW 08451 999

Whole Building

"Fire Alarm
Service and
Maintain"

6 Monthly

Yes

GMC

Riccal Drive, York Road Business Park, Malton,
North Yorkshire YO17 6YE 01653 697917

Whole Building

"Intruder Alarm
"

Annual

Yes

GMC

Riccal Drive, York Road Business Park, Malton,
North Yorkshire YO17 6YE 01653 697917

Whole Building

Fire Extinguishers

Annual

Yes

GMC

Riccal Drive, York Road Business Park, Malton,
North Yorkshire YO17 6YE 01653 697917

Pool

"Pool Alarm/Toilet
Alarm
Location: Disabled
Toilets, Pool Hall"

Annual

Yes

GMC

Riccal Drive, York Road Business Park, Malton,
North Yorkshire YO17 6YE 01653 697917

Whole Building

PAT Testing

Annual

Yes

HMC
Compliance

HMC Compliance Ltd, Unit 4 Crowhurst Hop
Farm Bullen Lane East Peckham
Tonbridge Kent TN12 5LP

Whole Building

Fixed Wiring

Annual

Yes

HMC
Compliance

HMC Compliance Ltd, Unit 4 Crowhurst Hop
Farm Bullen Lane East Peckham
Tonbridge Kent TN12 5LP

Whole Building

Emergency
Lighting

Annual

Yes

HMC
Compliance

HMC Compliance Ltd, Unit 4 Crowhurst Hop
Farm Bullen Lane East Peckham
Tonbridge Kent TN12 5LP

Air Handling Filters

6 Monthly

Yes

Flair
Handling
Ltd

Plant Room

Flair Handling Systems Ltd, Trident Works,
Martin Street, Birstakll, Batley, WF17 9PJ.

Page 35
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

23

Appendix 1 - PPM
Area & Type

Service
Frequency

Service
Contract

Company

Air Conitioning

3 visits per
year

Yes

AirCon
Group

Pool Plant System

6 Monthly

Yes

Sterling
Hydrotech

Boiler Plant

Annual

Yes

MCL Energy

Whole Building

Water Hygiene
Monitoring

Weekly Annual

Yes

Kingfisher

7 Crane Mead Business Park, Crane Mead,
Ware SG12 9PZ

Whole Building

Passenger Lift

Bi-Annually

Yes

Pickering
Lifts Ltd

The Washford Industrial Estate, 62 Heming Rd,
Redditch B98 0EA

Pool Accessible
Hoist

Bi-Annually

Yes

Arjo
Huntleigh

"Houghton Hall Business Park, Houghton Regis
Bedfordshire, LU5 5XF, United Kingdom"

Pool Cover

Annual

Yes

Forge Pool
Cover
Systems

4 Ilford Ave, Cramlington NE23 3LG
info@poolcoversystems.co.uk

Sauna

Bi-Annually

Yes

Dale Sauna

St James Business Park, 9 Grimbald Crag Cl,
Knaresborough HG5 8PJ

Automatic Doors
(internal)

Annual

Yes

Kone Plc

Gym

Fitness Equipment

Annual

Yes

Precor Ltd

Theta Building, Lyon Way, Frimley,
Surrey, GU16 7ER

Gym

Keiser Bike

Bi-Annually

Yes

Keisre
International

Unit 3, Hampton Industrial Estate,
Hampton Street, Tetbury,
Gloucestershire, GL8 8LD

Washroom Solutions
(Hand dryers, hair
dryers, sanitary bins
and water savers)

Annual

Yes

PHS
Washroom
Solutions

phs Group, Block B, Western Industrial Estate,
Caerphilly, United Kingdom, CF83 1XH

Contact Details

Location

Whole Building

Pool Plant

Plant Room

Pool

Whole Building

Sauna

Whole Building

Whole Building

Contact Details
Unit 52 Dukesway, Thornaby, Stockton-on-Tees
TS17 9LT
Park Rd, Holmewood, Holmewood
Chesterfield, Derbyshire S42 5UY 01246
857000
MCL Energy Ltd, Metcalfe House, Park View,
Langwith, Mansfield NG20 9DE

Kone, Global House Street Place, Fox Lane
Norton, Chertsey, Surrey, KT16 9HW 08451 999

Ryedale Swim and Fitness Centre
Location

Area & Type

Service
Frequency

Service
Contract

Company

Reception

"Automatic Doors
2 Auto front Doors"

Annual

Yes

Kone

Yes

ACE Fire &
Security

12 Triumph Way, Woburn Road Industrial
Estate, Kempston, Bedford, MK42 7QB
Head Office: 01234 854 455
Luke.Manton@acesecurity.co.uk
12 Triumph Way, Woburn Road Industrial
Estate, Kempston, Bedford, MK42 7QB
Head Office: 01234 854 455
Luke.Manton@acesecurity.co.uk
12 Triumph Way, Woburn Road Industrial
Estate, Kempston, Bedford, MK42 7QB
Head Office: 01234 854 455
Luke.Manton@acesecurity.co.uk

Whole Building

"Fire Alarm
Service and
Maintain"

Whole Building

"Intruder Alarm
"

Annual

Yes

ACE Fire &
Security

Whole Building

Fire Extinguishers

Annual

Yes

ACE Fire &
Security

6 Monthly

Kone, Global House Street Place, Fox Lane
Norton, Chertsey, Surrey, KT16 9HW 08451 999

Page 36
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

24

Appendix 1 - PPM
Area & Type

Service
Frequency

Service
Contract

Company

Contact Details

"Pool Alarm/Toilet
Alarm
Location: Disabled
Toilets, Pool Hall"

Annual

Yes

ACE Fire &
Security

12 Triumph Way, Woburn Road Industrial
Estate, Kempston, Bedford, MK42 7QB
Head Office: 01234 854 455
Luke.Manton@acesecurity.co.uk

Whole Building

PAT Testing

Annual

Yes

HMC
Compliance

HMC Compliance Ltd, Unit 4 Crowhurst Hop
Farm Bullen Lane East Peckham
Tonbridge Kent TN12 5LP

Whole Building

Fixed Wiring

Annual

Yes

HMC
Compliance

HMC Compliance Ltd, Unit 4 Crowhurst Hop
Farm Bullen Lane East Peckham
Tonbridge Kent TN12 5LP

Whole Building

Emergency
Lighting

Annual

Yes

HMC
Compliance

HMC Compliance Ltd, Unit 4 Crowhurst Hop
Farm Bullen Lane East Peckham
Tonbridge Kent TN12 5LP

Air Handling Filters

6 Monthly

Yes

Flair
Handling
Ltd

Air Conitioning

3 visits per
year

Yes

AirCon
Group

Unit 52 Dukesway, Thornaby, Stockton-on-Tees
TS17 9LT

Pool Plant System

6 Monthly

Yes

Sterling
Hydrotech

Park Rd, Holmewood, Holmewood,
Chesterfield, Derbyshire S42 5UY 01246 857000

Boiler Plant

Annual

Yes

MCL Energy

Whole Building

Water Hygiene
Monitoring

Weekly Annual

Yes

Kingfisher

7 Crane Mead Business Park, Crane Mead,
Ware SG12 9PZ

Whole Building

Passenger Lift

Bi-Annually

Yes

Pickering
Lifts Ltd

The Washford Industrial Estate, 62 Heming Rd,
Redditch B98 0EA

Pool Accessible
Hoist

Bi-Annually

Yes

Arjo
Huntleigh

"Houghton Hall Business Park, Houghton Regis
Bedfordshire, LU5 5XF, United Kingdom"

Whole Building

Pool Cover

Annual

Yes

Forge Pool
Cover
Systems

4 Ilford Ave, Cramlington NE23 3LG
info@poolcoversystems.co.uk

Whole Building

Automatic Doors
(internal)

Annual

Yes

Kone Plc

Gym

Fitness Equipment

Annual

Yes

Precor Ltd

Theta Building, Lyon Way, Frimley,
Surrey, GU16 7ER

Gym

Keiser Bike

Bi-Annually

Yes

Keisre
International

Unit 3, Hampton Industrial Estate,
Hampton Street, Tetbury,
Gloucestershire, GL8 8LD

Washroom
Solutions (Hand
dryers, hair dryers,
sanitary bins and
water savers)

Annual

Yes

PHS
Washroom
Solutions

phs Group, Block B, Western Industrial Estate,
Caerphilly, United Kingdom, CF83 1XH

External

Solar Panels

Annual

Yes

IWE
Services

The Hollies, Binnington Staxton, Scarborough
North Yorkshire YO12 4SW 01944 710641

Poolside

Pool Flume

Annual

Yes

Nationwide
Waterslide
Services Ltd

Poolside

Pool Inflatable

Annual

Yes

Air Space
Solutions

17, Tafarnaubach Industrial Estate,
Tafarnaubach, Tredegar NP22 3AA

CHP Unit

Quarterly

Yes

Shenton
Group Plc

Shenton House, Walworth Road, Walworth
Business Park, Andover, UK. SP10 5LH

Sound System

Annual

Yes

Audio Tech
Ltd

Audio-Technica Ltd, Technica House,
Unit 5, Millennium Way, Leeds, LS11 5AL,
United Kingdom

Location

Pool

Plant Room

Whole Building
Pool Plant
Plant Room

Pool

Whole Building

Plant Room

Whole Building

Flair Handling Systems Ltd, Trident Works,
Martin Street, Birstakll, Batley, WF17 9PJ.

MCL Energy Ltd, Metcalfe House, Park View,
Langwith, Mansfield NG20 9DE

Kone, Global House Street Place, Fox Lane
Norton, Chertsey, Surrey, KT16 9HW 08451 999

Email: enquiries@waterslideservices.co.uk

Page 37
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

25

2073

18200

9153

2045

18523

Ryedale Swim &
Fitness Centre

Ryedale Sport
Centre

Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

5238

1276

5206

Ryedale Sport
Centre

429

2837

402

2827

Ryedale Sport
Centre

1288

1322

Ryedale Swim &
Fitness Centre

1120

1103

Derwent Swim &
Fitness Centre

Monitored Attendance

1261

1989

Ryedale Swim &
Fitness Centre

2093

1941

1884

10125

10490

Derwent Swim &
Fitness Centre

Casual Attendance

383

5605

4137

367

5842

Ryedale Swim &
Fitness Centre

Ryedale Sport
Centre

4281

Derwent Swim &
Fitness Centre

Class/Course and Gym Attendance

8986

7325

7141

May

Derwent Swim &
Fitness Centre

Total Attendance

April

2462

435

1023

1004

5217

1201

2122

1894

9998

284

5423

4291

17677

1920

8568

7189

June

2543

415

1147

981

4725

1137

1946

1642

11041

380

6295

4366

18309

1932

9388

6989

July

2315

419

944

952

5396

1129

2423

1844

11018

538

6575

3905

18729

2086

9942

6701

August

2760

436

1303

1021

5190

1336

1969

1885

10302

241

5430

4631

18252

2013

8702

7537

September

2401

418

1010

973

5171

1114

2214

1843

10689

456

5814

4419

18261

1988

9038

7235

October

Monthly Breakdown

2366

420

949

997

5188

979

2265

1944

9340

371

4875

4094

16894

1770

8089

7035

November

2240

421

943

876

3851

650

1899

1302

8641

317

3966

4358

14732

1388

6808

6536

December

2842

434

1288

1120

5119

1414

2041

1664

10740

679

4962

5099

18701

2527

8291

7883

January

2982

439

1364

1179

4827

1301

1982

1544

8760

622

4182

3956

16569

2362

7528

6679

February

2055

311

921

823

4088

927

1723

1438

5493

283

2947

2263

11636

1521

5591

4524

March

30630

4979

13502

12149

59216

13725

24666

20825

116637

4921

61916

49800

206483

23625

100084

82774

2019-20
Totals

Appendix 2 - Attendance Data

Page 38

26

6

13

19

7

42

Ryedale Swim
& Fitness

Derwent Swim
& Fitness

4

3

16

Ryedale Sports
Centre

Natural
Causes

Total
Accidents

Site

30

6

11

13

Sporting
Injury

5

1

4

0

Other
type of
Injury

41

7

18

16

No of
Customer
Accidents

2

2

0

0

No of
SLIPS
(NonSporting)

0

0

0

0

No Of
Accidents
involving
Flumes

0

0

0

0

No of
Contractor
Accidents

1

0

1

0

No of
Colleague
Accidents

0

0

0

0

No of
colleague
days absense
as a result
of H&S issue
(Stress,
Accident etc.)

0

0

0

0

No of
Customer
Accidents
RIDDOR
reportable

0

0

0

0

No of
Colleague
Accidents
RIDDOR
reportable

N/A

N/A

N/A

Brief
overview
of Riddor
Reportable
Accidents

Appendix 3 - Accident Analysis

Page 39

Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

27

Appendix 4 - Customer Feedback
Everyone Active (Ryedale Contract)
COMPLAINTS & FEEDBACK PROCEDURES

OVERVIEW
Company Standard:

Timescales:

The Company will listen, value and respond to all comments made by
customers
The Company will acknowledge receipt within 2 working days and look to
respond to all comments within 7 working days or longer time period agreed
with the customer.

RESPONSIBILITIES
General Managers Responsibility
•
Display Customer Charter, EA24 ‘Have Your Say’ Forms, and ‘Have Your Say’ response Box.
•
Create an area where it is easy for the customer to complete EA24 ‘Have Your Say’ Forms with
a pen and table to lean on.
•
Ensure ‘EA26 Single Customer View Recording Sheet’ are set up at Reception, where
colleagues are present for a period of the day.
•
Allocate a Manager to be responsible for gathering, analysing and reviewing customer
comments.
•
Ensure all e-mail comments are acknowledged within 2 working days, responded to within 7
working days, or longer time period agreed with the customer, and passed to the Manager
Responsible for Customer Comments to review and record on the EA108 Customer Comment
Spreadsheet.
•
Discuss Customer Comments as an agenda item at regular Management Meetings and
implement actions that will improve the service.
All Colleagues Responsibilities
If a customer tells you about their experience at the Centre (whether it is a compliment, suggestion
or complaint.)
•
Listen to them.
•
If it is a suggestion or complaint, consider if there is anything you can do.
•
If you can, inform them what you will do and then do it.
•
If you need to let another colleague know, inform them that you will pass it on to the
appropriate person.
•
Ask if they would like a response if they do inform them they will be responded to within 7
days, or informed if it will take longer.
•
Record the details on the ‘EA26 Single Customer View Recording Sheet’ at Reception or
complete an EA24 ‘Have Your Say’ Form adding the individuals details if they need a response.
•
Any request for a refund should be directed to the Duty Manager who will follow the refund
procedure in the finance manual and notify the General Manager.

Page 40
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

28

Appendix 4 - Customer Feedback
Duty Manager (designated) responsible for Customer Feedback Responsibilities
•
Gather all verbal, e-mail and EA24 ‘Have Your Say’ Forms.
•
Ensure all comments are acknowledged within three working days, and responded to
appropriately within 7 working days or longer time period agreed with the customer.
•
Summarise monthly customer comments on EA108 Customer Comment Spreadsheet.
•
File all comments with responses attached in the customer comment file; place the monthly
summary at the start of each month’s section.
•
Take minutes at Quarterly Management Forums.
•
File the Quarterly Management Forum minutes in the Meeting Minutes File.
•
Raise all comments at Management Meetings so actions can be determined that will improve
the service.
Regional Health and Safety / Quality Manager
•
Provide support to the General Manager in the response of any escalated complaints.
•
Review sites comment summary monthly and review with General Manager during next site
visit.
PROCEDURE
The following procedure will be followed to allow customers multiple avenues for providing customer
comments to the respective leisure centre.
Stage 1
The complaint is recorded on one of the following documents:Customer Comment Form
Verbal
Website
Written
E-mail
Head Office
Client (Ryedale District Council)

EA24 Have Your Say Form
EA26 Verbal Comment Log
Auto E-mailed to the relevant Head of Department
To the General Manager
Direct to the centre or relevant Head of Department
E-mailed to the General Manager
Via Client Officer to the General Manager

All complaints are then logged on ‘Single Customer View’.
Customers can directly log complaints online, directly into ‘Single Customer View’ via
https://www.everyoneactive.com/feedback/
EA25 ‘Single Customer View Recording Sheet’ on TEAMS
The aim is that the complaint is comprehensively investigated at this stage and resolved to the
customer’s satisfaction within 7 days by the relevant manager. If further time is required to resolve
the complaint, then the timescales are agreed with the customer. If these cannot be agreed then the
complaint is escalated to Stage 2.
EA24 ‘Have your say form’, Written and Email complaints will be stored, but logged onto Single
41the complete customer complaint journey.
Customer View for detailed trend analysis andPage
to support
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

Complaints that are more complex or are related to safeguarding or of a serious Health & Safety

29

Customers can directly log complaints online, directly into ‘Single Customer View’ via
https://www.everyoneactive.com/feedback/
EA25 ‘Single Customer View Recording Sheet’ on TEAMS
The aim is that the complaint is comprehensively investigated at this stage and resolved to the
customer’s satisfaction within 7 days by the relevant manager. If further time is required to resolve
the complaint, then the timescales are agreed with the customer. If these cannot be agreed then the
complaint is escalated to Stage 2.

Appendix 4 - Customer Feedback

EA24 ‘Have your say form’, Written and Email complaints will be stored, but logged onto Single
Customer View for detailed trend analysis and to support the complete customer complaint journey.
Complaints that are more complex or are related to safeguarding or of a serious Health & Safety
matter will be investigated by the Area Manager (with support from the Regional Health & Safety
Quality Manager if related to safeguarding or of a serious health & safety matter) and if appropriate
the relevant Director or Group Manager, and the Client Officer at Ryedale District Council will be
informed about the complaint.
If the complaint is not resolved at Stage 1, the complainant will be passed to the Client Officer at
Ryedale District Council and escalated to Stage 2.

Stage 2
If the complaint has not been successfully dealt with, or the response given is not satisfactory, the
customer is requested to contact the Client (Ryedale District Council) directly. You can do this by:
 Telephoning their Customer Contact Centre on 01653 600666 and ask to speak to the
Customer Service Lead, Team Leader or Principal Specialist.
 By letter to the Customer Service Lead, Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Old Malton
Road, Malton YO17 7HH
 Completing an online complaint submission (https://www.ryedale.gov.uk/yourcouncil/strategies-plans-policies/comments-compliments-and-complaintsprocedure/comments-compliments-and-complaints-form.html)
Where a reply is needed, Ryedale District Council aim to provide a full reply within 5 working days.
The full complaints procedure to be followed from Stage 2, can be found online at
https://www.ryedale.gov.uk/your-council/strategies-plans-policies/comments-compliments-andcomplaints-procedure
Stage 3
Advise the customer that if they are dissatisfied with the remedies they can contact the Local
Government Ombudsman. The Local Government Ombudsman has a statutory responsibility to
investigate further.

Page 42
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

30

Appendix 4 - Customer Feedback
Customer Comments Summary
April 2019 - March 2020
Number of
customer
comments

Customer
comment
card

E-mail and
SCV

Verbal

Written

Client

% Responded
within 48 hour
timescale

Ryedale Swim & Fitness

182

2

93

87

0

0

100%

Ryedale Sports Centre

43

0

17

26

0

0

100%

Derwent Swim & Fitness

130

0

52

78

0

0

100%

Number of
customer
comments

Customer
comment
card

E-mail and
SCV

Verbal

Written

Client

% Responded
within 48 hour
timescale

Ryedale Swim & Fitness

273

12

149

112

0

0

100%

Ryedale Sports Centre

41

0

24

17

0

0

100%

Derwent Swim & Fitness

143

0

61

82

0

0

100%

Centre

April 2018 - March 2019
Centre

April 2017 - March 2018
Number of
customer
comments

Customer
comment
card

E-mail and
SCV

Verbal

Written

% Responded within
48 hour timescale

Ryedale Swim & Fitness

206

22

137

45

2

100%

Ryedale Sports Centre

35

4

31

0

0

100%

Derwent Swim & Fitness

94

18

47

29

0

100%

Number of
customer
comments

Customer
comment
card

E-mail and
SCV

Verbal

Written

% Responded within
7 day timescale

Ryedale Swim & Fitness

241

51

131

41

11

100%

Ryedale Sports Centre

27

7

19

1

0

100%

Derwent Swim & Fitness

82

58

26

0

0

100%

Centre

April 2016 - March 2017
Centre

Page 43
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

31

Appendix 5 - Ryedale Marketing 2019-20

Page 44
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

32

Appendix 5 - Ryedale Marketing 2018-19

Page 45
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

33

Appendix 5 - Ryedale Marketing 2018-19
RY EDAL E DIST RICT

OUTSTANDING
ACHIEVEMENT
Thursday 13th
February 2020

RYEDALE DISTRICT

OUTSTANDING
ACHIEVEMENT
Thursday 13th
February 2020

Nominate today at http://tiny.cc/14w48y
everyoneactive.com
facebook.com/everyoneactive
@everyoneactive
@everyoneactive

Page 46
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

34

Appendix 5 - Ryedale Marketing 2018-19

JOIN
WIN

SWIMMING
LESSONS!

Y OUT
AN AWESOME FAMILY DA

HAVE A
MONTH
ON US

*

PLUS,

*

†

and take your first step
on an epic fitness journey
out
e.com/familydays
Visit everyoneactiv

facebook.com/everyoneactive

TO GET ACTIVE

Visit everyoneactive.com/GetActive

*GB only. 18+. Prize draw, one entry per adult or child enrolled. Recipient must be parent/guardian if child lessons. Participating centres only.
Opens 1 April and closes 30 June 2020. Those already on Direct Debit or paid in full for lessons will automatically be entered into draw.
Valid email address required to enter. There are 10 x Family Days Out worth up to £250 to be won. Visit www.everyoneactive.com/familydaysout
for full terms. †1x free 6-month subscription code to Kids Pass for each household enrolled on swimming lessons at participating centres.
Visit www.everyoneactive.com/familydaysout for full terms. Everyone Active manages these facilities in partnership with
Scarborough Borough Council and Ryedale District Council.

everyoneactive.com

IT’S A GREAT TIME FOR
*Offer valid until 11/10/2019. UK bank holders only, 16+. Direct debit membership. Must cancel by 20th of
month in order for the DD to stop on the 1st of the following month. A joining fee applies. Not available to
existing members. See www.everyoneactive.com/GetActive for full terms.

@everyoneactive

Everyone Active manages these facilities in partnership
with Ryedale District Council.

@everyoneactive

everyoneactive.com
17512_Primary Times_Swim Lessons_297x210_Scarborough and Ryedale.indd 1

facebook.com/everyoneactive

@everyoneactive

@everyoneactive

03/03/2020 15:00

AFTER SCHOOL SPORTS
ACTIVITIES PROGRAMME

Ryedale Sports Centre
01751 476 726
www.everyoneactive.com

LOVES TO GET ACTIVE
Everyone Active manages this facility in
partnership with Ryedale District Council.

Page 47
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

35

Appendix 5 - Ryedale Marketing 2018-19

AWARD WINNING
SWIMMING LESSONS
GET THEM POOL READY!
PLUS WIN A HAVEN FAMILY BREAK*
Book your space today at everyoneactive.com
*UK (excluding Northern Ireland). 18+ (parent/guardian if child lessons). Automatic entry on enrolment. Closing date 30 June 2019. 1 x Haven stay worth up to £1500 and 2 x Haven stays worth up to £500 each to be won
(covers accommodation cost only). Visit www.everyoneactive.com/Haven for further details and full terms.

W

everyoneactive.com

facebook.com/everyoneactive

@everyoneactive

@everyoneactive

EVERYONE ACTIVE IN RYEDALE
GET SET FOR SUMMER
WITH TWO MONTHS FREE
plus a FREE 30-minute personal training
session, when you join Everyone Active on
an annual fitness membership!*

Visit everyoneactive.com/WarmUp
*16 years+. 1-year annual fitness membership, full cost must be paid in advance. A joining fee applies.
No refunds if membership cancelled early. See www.everyoneactive.com/WarmUp for full terms.
Everyone Active manages these facilities in partnership with Ryedale District Council.

Page 48
Everyone Active Ryedale District Council Contract

36

Agenda Item 7

PART A:

MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

19 NOVEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

PROGRAMME
DIRECTOR
FOR
ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND PARTNERSHIPS
PHILLIP SPURR

TITLE OF REPORT:

PROGRESS REPORT ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE
CLIMATE CHANGE ACTION PLAN AND ASSOCIATED
PROJECTS

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To update the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on progress in delivering the Climate
Change Action Plan and projects and initiatives planned for the period up to December
2021.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

To note progress on delivery of the Climate Change Action Plan and future actions to
be completed.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To continue momentum with the delivery of the Climate Change Action Plan adopted
by Council. The Council has set a target of achieving net zero by 2050.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

If timely action to achieve reduced carbon usage and emissions is not delivered, RDC
potentially faces reputational risk as a commitment has been made and endorsed by
Elected Members.

4.2

There are clear opportunities to utilise the low carbon sector to support economic
growth. There is a clear risk if of not developing the low carbon economy of the district
if these opportunities are not utilised. .

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 49

19 NOVEMBER 2020

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The Climate Change Action Plan was agreed at 11 April 2019 Council meeting, as part
of the Scrutiny Review into the how Ryedale District Council could play its part in
reducing global temperature rise.

5.2

Members declared a Climate Emergency on 10 October 2019 and in line with the
government’s own legally binding net-zero targets as a minimum, commit to actions to
help achieve these targets across Ryedale.

5.3

A Sustainable, Safe and Clean Place is included under the “Our Environment” Priority
within the Council Plan that was adopted by Members in September 2020.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The recommendations of the Scrutiny Committee were adopted by Council on 11 April
2019 and progress towards meeting the actions agreed are outlined in the Climate
Change Action Plan. The report will be made available biannually for Members to
review.

6.2

The Action Plan is reviewed and delivered on an ongoing basis but due to the COVID
emergency, no internal Climate Change Corporate Working Group meetings were held
between March and October 2020. The group resumed its meetings in October 2020
and these will continue on a monthly basis from October 2020.
Progress March to October 2020

6.3

A review of progress against actions within the Action Plan has taken place to ascertain
the position as of October 2020. Highlights of progress made since the last report
include:
 Appointment of Climate Change & Environmental Projects Officer (CC&EPO),
John Law who joined RDC on the 7 September 2020.
 New CC&EPO attended Ryedale Environment Group’s (REG) meeting on 15
September 2020 and support was given for the Ryedale Environment Week
programme for 23-31 October 2020. The whole programme was delivered online
with presentations, videos and talks open to all to take part in. Full details were
made available on the REG website:
https://ryedaleenvirogroup.co.uk/environment-week/.
 The need for a Ryedale based registered environmental charity has been
identified. This will allow the various funding streams only open to registered
charities, e.g. Green Recovery Challenge Fund (GRCF) to be accessed for the
benefit of the district.
 Additional secondary glazing was installed on the first floor of Ryedale House in
April 2020.
 Phase 1 of the LED Streetlight procurement process was completed In October
2020.
 An audit of RDC Owned Land and Buildings to identify opportunities for Climate
Change related initiatives has commenced.
 Energy Saving Trust Report in to the efficiency of RDCs “grey” fleet has been
received and is being reviewed by Officers with proposals for alternative energy
saving measures to be brought forward in early 2021. This will include actions
within the Low Carbon Staff Travel Plan.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 50

19 NOVEMBER 2020







Design work for the European Agricultural Fund for Rural Development funded
Malton to Pickering Cycle Route has been completed and the tender process will
commence in November 2020. Target completion date for the scheme is summer
2021.
Rapid EV charging points have been installed in St Nicholas Street car park, Norton
upon Derwent, and Water Lane car park in Malton. Currently over 1400 charges
have been recorded, saving over 19000kg Co2. A successful application securing
£46,790, has been made to OLEV’s on-street charging funding scheme to install
additional charging points in other car parks in the district by March 2021.
.
The Destination Development Plan for Ryedale supports the need to encourage
greater use of public transport in Ryedale. Where good public transport exists,
there is a need for greater awareness, to make it easier for both residents and
visitors to become more aware of routes and the advantages of using them.
Production of the Sit Back and Enjoy the Ride’ will be completed in November
2020. 40,000 copies will be produced with the majority being provided to Transport
Hubs. The remainder will be available to those requesting some for display racks.
A digital, interactive map will also be available on the RDC website under the
Tourism section.

New Activity proposed from November 2020 to end December 2021
6.4

The following section details new activity recently initiated and which will be progressed
over the period to the end of 2021:













Actively participating in the YNY LEP activity to use the LGA Carbon Accounting
Tool to benchmark and measure our CO2 emissions. All other Local Authorities in
York and North Yorkshire will also be participating. The first report using our own
data will be available in November 2020. The data used is that currently collected
and recorded for all RDC buildings.
A tender process and subsequent funding application to OLEV’s Workplace
Charging Scheme will be completed to install EV charging points at Ryedale
House, the Depot and the Building Control Offices in Easingwold. Delivery
timescales are dependent on the tender process and funding applications.
In partnership with the YNY LEP, a range of low carbon initiatives, such as the
investigation of renewable energy options for village halls in Ryedale, are being
progressed. We are also participating in the development of a Circular Economy
Project in Malton and Norton which will become an exemplar for other similar
market town projects across the country.
Circular Malton have secured European funding to undertake detailed research
and feasibility work towards developing an anaerobic digester / biogas project to
utilise food waste and other organic waste from around the district. RDC Officers
will continue to provide support and advice to the team ensuring strong linkages
are maintained with all departments within the Authority.
A funding application through the Heat Network Delivery Unit (HNDU) at the
Department for Business Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) is being developed
by Officers in partnership with Third Energy and the YNY LEP. The application will
seek funding to undertake techno-economic feasibility work to assess Third
Energy’s existing gas extraction and distribution assets in Ryedale for geothermal
heat usage.
Clarification is being sought from Northern Powergrid (NPG) on the location of, and
capacity available of, grid connections in the district. It is proposed to commence
mapping of opportunities for renewable energy developments.
LED street lighting replacement programme will be completed.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 51

19 NOVEMBER 2020








6.5

Additional EV charging points will be installed in a number of public car parks
across the district.
RDC is a consultee to Northern Powergrid (NPG) on their Future Business Plan
2023-2030, and through this process the two parties are exploring various
initiatives including EV Charging and Community Energy Schemes. NPG are key
in determining the location of large scale Renewable Energy Schemes which will
help in the identification of locations for suitable grid connections in the district.
Confirmation of this information should be made available to Officers in November
2020.
The format of the Climate Change Action Plan is under review and a new format
will be brought forwards for approval by the O&S Committee by the end of
January 2021 and will take into account any comments. The new format will
present the actions and progress toward achieving targets in a clearer way.
Climate Change Corporate Working Party will continue to meet regularly and
officers from all departments strongly encouraged to participate, support the
delivery of actions and act as a champion for climate change activity.

In summary and based on the above, the following priorities for progress have been
identified for the next 12 months
Action

Summary of action required

1. RDC HQ and depot

Assess further opportunities for
energy efficiency and installation
of renewables
Implement LED replacement
works across the district
Implement recommendations
from the Energy Saving Trust on
Low Carbon Staff Travel Plan
Work with the Planning Team to
develop further initiatives and
guides to promote RDCs low
carbon agenda within Planning.
Continue to progress the
implementation of the Malton to
Pickering Cycle Route scheme
Continue to implement the
programme to install EV
charging points in long stay car
parks across the district and at
Ryedale House, the Depot and
the Building Control offices
Finalise the printed and digital
versions of the ‘Sit Back and
Enjoy the Ride’ publication
Continue to work with the YNY
LEP and Circular Malton on
Circular economy projects
across the district.

2. Street lighting LED
replacement
3. Low Carbon Staff
Travel Plan
4. Planning

5. Malton to Pickering
Cycle Route
6. Electric Vehicle
charging points

7. Public transport
campaign
8. Support the
development of a
low carbon
economy

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 52

Short term (next 3
months)
Medium term (next 6
months)
Long term (Next 12
months)
M

M
L

S

L

L

S

L

19 NOVEMBER 2020

9. Develop the RDC
approach to Waste
Management in
response to climate
change and the
DEFRA Resources
and Waste Strategy
10. Geothermal heat
project

11. Large scale
renewable energy
scheme in Ryedale
12. Tree planting, new
woodland creation
and peat restoration

CC&EPO to work with newly
appointed Waste and Recycling
Officer to develop and progress
waste management initiatives.

S

In collaboration with YNY LEP
and Third Energy Ltd apply for
funding for a feasibility study into
geothermal heat from the HNDU
at BEIS.
Investigate opportunities for
large scale renewable energy
projects in Ryedale
Develop a plan to encourage
and implement tree planting,
new woodland creation and peat
restoration projects in the
District

S

M

M

6.6

Significant progress has been made in delivering activity and achieving the actions of
the Climate Change Action Plan. To maintain momentum and continue to drive forward
with the Action Plan support and encouragement to engage in the agenda and assist
in the development and delivery of actions will be provided by the CC&EPO. To assist
in achieving this, each Service within the Authority will be encouraged to designate a
representative to attend Corporate Working Group meetings, support and directly
deliver actions as appropriate, and ensure the wider team are fully aware of
developments so new opportunities can be identified through individual work
programmes and service planning processes.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
£50,000 has been approved for Officers to drive forward the changes required.
This is likely to be for smaller scale projects, feasibility studies etc, but could be
utilised for larger scale capital within budget.
As of the 1 October 2020, £12,000 of this budget has been allocated for spend
this year on EV charging points installations at Ryedale House, the Depot and the
Building Control offices. An additional £4,500 towards this scheme has been
allocated from the Active Travel Fund.
It should be noted that the required 25% of match funding, the equivalent of
£12,700, towards the long stay car park EV charging points has been allocated
from the Growth Budget. The final figure is however subject the conclusion of the
tender process.
b) Legal
Legal assistance will be required should the HNDU application be successful and
an agreement is needed between RDC and Third Energy.
c) Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
Staff participation in Working Group meetings and in working on actions in their
respective teams.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 53

19 NOVEMBER 2020

8.0

NEXT STEPS

8.1

The Corporate Working Group will continue to meet monthly to review and support
Ryedale District Council to deliver the Climate Change Action Plan.

Programme Director for Economic Development, Business and Partnerships
Phillip Spurr
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

John Law – Climate Change & Environmental Projects Officer
01653 600666 ext: 43317
john.law@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
N/A

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 54

19 NOVEMBER 2020

Agenda Item 8

PART A:

MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

REPORT TO:

AUDIT, OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

19 NOVEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID-YEAR REVIEW

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To report on the treasury management activities to date for the financial year 2020/21
in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s
(CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code).

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)
Members receive this report; and
(ii)
The mid-year performance of the in-house managed funds to date is noted.
(iii)
The limit for Term Deposits with Local Authorities under 365 day be increased
to £2m.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

The Council has adopted the Code. A provision of the Code is that a mid-year review
report must be made to the Full Council relating to the treasury activities of the current
year.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are significant risks when investing public funds especially with unknown
institutions. However, by the adoption of the CIPFA Code and a prudent investment
strategy these are minimised. The employment of Treasury Advisors also helps reduce
the risk.

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 55

19 NOVEMBER 2020

REPORT
5.0

BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION

5.1

Treasury Management in Local Government is governed by the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services and in this context is the
management of the Authority’s cash flows, its banking and capital market transactions,
the effective control of the risks associated with those activities and the pursuit of
optimum performance consistent with those risks. The Authority has adopted the Code
and complies with its requirements

5.2

The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised during the
year will meet its cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management operations
ensures this cash flow is adequately planned, with surplus monies being invested in
low risk counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering
maximising investment return.

5.3

The second major function of the treasury management service is the funding of the
Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide towards whether the
Council has a borrowing need, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure
the Council can meet its capital spending operations. This management of longer-term
cash may involve arranging long or short term loans or using longer term cash flow
surpluses.

5.4

This mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice
and covers the following:
 An economic update for the first six months of 2020/21;
 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment
Strategy;
 A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2020/21;
 A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2020/21.

6.0

POLICY CONTEXT

6.1

The Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in
Local Authorities and this report complies with the requirements under this Code.

7.0

CONSULTATION

7.1

The Council uses the services of Link Asset Services (Link) to provide treasury
management information and advice.

8.0

REPORT DETAILS

8.1

The Council’s treasury advisors Link Asset Services – Treasury Solutions summarised
the key points associated with economic activity in Q2 2020/21 up to 30 September
2020:


The Coronavirus outbreak has resulted in economic damage to the UK and the
world, with UK GDP falling by 23%:

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 56

19 NOVEMBER 2020







Bank Rate remained unchanged at 0.1%, with this rate now expected to continue
for some time;
Quantitative easing remains unchanged at £745bn;
The Governor of the Bank of England stated that more quantitative easing would
be favoured over the instruction of negative interest rates;
Economic recovery is expected to be gradual and prolonged;
Brexit uncertainties ahead of the 31 December deadline are expected to affect
economic recovery;

A more detailed economic commentary on developments during Q2 2020/21 is included
in Appendix C.
8.2

The Council’s treasury advisor, Link Asset Services, has provided the following
forecast:

* Net of certainty rate 0.2% discount
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy
Update.
8.3

The Treasury Management Strategy (TMSS) for 2020/21 was approved by this Council
on 20 February 2020. There are no policy changes to the TMSS, the details in this
report update the position in the light of the updated economic position and budgetary
changes already approved. Council’s Annual Investment Strategy, which is
incorporated in the TMSS, outlines the Council’s investment priorities as follows:




Security of capital
Liquidity
Yield

8.4

The Council will also aim to achieve the optimum return on investments commensurate
with the proper levels of security and liquidity. In the current economic climate it is
considered appropriate to keep investments short term (maximum loan period of 12
months) and only invest with highly credit rated financial institutions, using Link’s
suggested creditworthiness approach, including sovereign rating and credit default
swap (CDS) overlay information provided by Link.

8.5

Investments during the first six months of the year have been in line with the strategy
and there have been no deviations from the strategy.

8.6

As outlined above, there is still some uncertainty and volatility in the financial and
banking market, both globally and in the UK. In this context, it is considered that the

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 57

19 NOVEMBER 2020

strategy approved on 20 February 2020 is still fit for purpose in the current economic
climate.

8.7

Investment Portfolio 2020/21
In accordance with the Code, it is the Council’s priority to ensure security of capital and
liquidity and to obtain an appropriate level of return which is consistent with the
Council’s risk appetite.

8.8

As highlighted in the economic commentary, the effect of Covid-19 on the economy is
apparent in the financial markets, with the bank base rate cut to 0.1% and set to
continue for the foreseeable. The knock on impact on investment returns will start to
increase as the second half of the year, as we see investments maturing and now
being replaced at much lower rates.

8.9

The Council’s investment position at the beginning of the financial year was as follows:
Investments
(£)
9,208,398
17,000,000
26,208,398

Type of Institution
UK Clearing Banks
Foreign Banks
Building Societies
Local Authorities
Total

8.10

A full list of investments held as at 30 September 2020, compared to Sectors
counterparty list and changes to Fitch, Moodys and S&P’s credit ratings during the first
six months of 2020/21 is shown in annex B and summarised below:

Investments
(£)
18,136,578

Type of Institution
UK Clearing Banks
Foreign Banks
Building Societies
Local Authorities
Total

14,000,000
32,136,578

8.11

The average level of funds available for investment purposes in the first six months of
2020/21 was £34.54m. These funds were available on a temporary basis and the level
of funds available was mainly dependent on the timing of precept payments, receipt of
grants, (particularly in relation to Covid-19 funding packages for Businesses) along
with progress of the capital programme.

8.12

The table below compares the investment portfolio yield for the first six months of the
year against a benchmark of the average 7 day LIBID rate of -0.05%.
Average
Investment

Cash Equivalents
Fixed Term Deposits

8.13

(£)
8,626,536
25,916,393

Average
Gross
Rate of
Return
0%
0.88%

Net
Rate of
Return

Benchmark
Return

Interest
Earned
(£)

n/a
n/a

n/a
-0.05%

115,213

The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2020/21 is £205k and performance

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 58

19 NOVEMBER 2020

during the financial year to 30 September 2020 is £115k. However, as the year
progresses and the impact of lower returns start to take effect, is it expected that the
forecast position will be approximately £165k, £40k below the annual target. This
cost pressure is being monitored along with other Covid-19 related cost pressures and
is being updated on a regular basis due to unprecedented uncertainty around future
deposits and returns.
8.14

8.15

The current investment counterparty criteria selection approved in the TMSS is not
currently meeting the requirement of the treasury management function, due to the
limits on investments with Local Authorities. Following a review of counterparty limits
as part of the 2020/21 strategy, Local Authority limits were reduced to £1m. Whilst
there is still a good spread of Local Authorities on the list of our current deposits, during
the first half of the financial year, we have experienced difficulties placing deposits with
many Local Authorities at this level, and consequently have been carrying a large
balance in our call account, which is current attracting 0% return. Local Authorities are
considered as high security deposits as they are backed by the UK Government and
ought to be considered in line with other secure counterparties, which currently ranges
up to £4m with the highest rated UK banks. It is therefore proposed to increase limits
to £2m from £1m.
Compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits
It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the “Affordable
Borrowing Limits”. The Council’s approved Treasury and Prudential Indicators
(affordability limits) are outlined in the approved Treasury Management Strategy
Statement (TMSS).

8.16

During the financial year to date the Council has operated within the treasury limits and
Prudential Indicators set out in the Council’s TMSS and in compliance with the
Council’s Treasury Management Practices. The Prudential and Treasury Indicators are
shown in annex A.

8.17

The level of borrowing is £1.53m, full details can be found at annex B. Repayments
have been made in line with the loan repayment schedule. In order to fulfil the funding
requirements of the current Capital Programme it is unlikely any additional borrowing
will be undertaken, with any anticipated capital expenditure funded from reserves.

9.0

TREASURY MANAGEMENT FUNCTION & SWEEPING ARRANGEMENTS

9.1

Included within the service level agreement currently being finalised with North
Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) for the provision of s151 Officer and Finance
services, there is provision for treasury management support.

9.2

Reporting and monitoring processes are currently in place, and options are currently
being explored to incorporate Ryedale into the pooled investment fund operated by
NYCC. NYCC provides an investment pool where its own cash balances and those of
several other public sector organisations are merged together to form a combined
investment pool. Such an arrangement achieves economies of scale in terms of overall
better interest returns together with the efficiencies resulting from not having to
administer individual authority investment operations

9.3

Discussions are currently underway between the Authorities’ respective banks and
progress will be reported back in due course. Prior to implementing such
arrangements, RDC will also be asked to formally adopt the Investment strategy of
NYCC, which will require approval of Policy & Resources committee.

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 59

19 NOVEMBER 2020

10.0

IMPLICATIONS

10.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
The results of the investment strategy affects the revenue budget. The investment
income return to 30 September 2020 was £115k, which is £12.5k in excess of the
profiled budget, however due to the severe bank rate cut, the forecast outturn
position is expected to be £165k, £40k below target. The cost of borrowing affects
the revenue account, forecast interest costs for the year are £53k, which is £2k
below budget.

b)

Legal
There are no additional legal implications within this report.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime &
Disorder)
There are no additional implications within this report.

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Michelle Oates, Senior Accountant
01653 600666
michelle.oates@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
N/a

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 60

19 NOVEMBER 2020

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 61

19 NOVEMBER 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX A
PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY INDICATORS
Prudential Indicators
2019/20
Actual

2020/21
Original

2020/21
YTD

£1.146m

£1.285m

£0.034m

-£26.208m

£-16.829m

-£30.490m

Capital Financing Requirement as at 30 Sept (incl.
leases)

£1.702m

£2.162m

£1.647m

Annual change in Capital Financing Requirement

-£0.163m

£0.460m

-£0.55m

Capital Expenditure
Net borrowing requirement

Treasury Management Indicators

Authorised Limit for external debt borrowing
other long term liabilities
Total
Operational Boundary for external debt borrowing
other long term liabilities
Total
External debt

Upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure
Net principal re fixed rate investments

2019/20
Actual

2020/21
Original

2020/21
Actual

£10.0m
£1.0m
£11.0m

£10.0m
£ 1.0m
£11.0m

£10.0m
£ 1.0m
£11.0m

£5.0m
£0.4m
£5.4m

£5.0m
£0.4m
£5.4m

£5.0m
£0.4m
£5.4m

£1.55m

£1.51m

£1.535m

100%

100%

100%

N/a

50%

N/a

N/a

£1.0m

N/a

Upper limit for variable rate exposure
Net principal re variable rate investments
Upper limit for total principal sums invested for over
364 days
(per maturity date)

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 63

19 NOVEMBER 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX B
Investment Portfolio at 30 September 2019

Counterparty
Lloyds Bank
Brentwood
Coventry City Council
Goldman Sacs International Bank
Goldman Sacs International Bank
Santander
Santander
West Dunbartonshire Council
Santander
Standard Chartered Bank
North East Lincolnshire
South Somerset District Council
Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council
Blaenau Gwent Borough Council
Gloucester City Council
Lancashire County Council
Broxbourne
Lloyds Bank PLC
Lloyds Bank PLC
Gosport Council

Amount
£
7,136,578.00
1,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
500,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,500,000
3,000,000
3,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

Investment
Duration

Sovereign
Rating

On-Call
12 Months
12 Months
6 Months
6 Months
6 Months
6 Months
12 Months
6 Months
12 Months
12 Months
12 Months
12 Months
12 Months
12 Months
12 Months
12 Months
12 Months
12 Months
12 Months

AA
AAA
AAA
AA
AA
AAA
AAA
AAA
AAA
AAA
AAA
AAA
AAA
AAA
AAA
AAA
AAA
AA
AA
AAA

32,136,578

Fitch, Moody's and S & P's Sovereignty Rating for the UK is AA.
All the above borrowers met the required credit rating at the time of investment.

Borrowing Schedule as at 30 September 2020
Lender
PWLB
PWLB

Principal
Outstanding
£1.00m
£0.53m

Type

Interest Rate

Maturity

Maturity
EIP

3.69%
2.99%

50 years
19 years

Page 65

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX C

Detailed Economic Commentary on Developments during Q2 2020/21
1.

Economic Background
UK

1.1 As expected, the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) kept Bank
Rate unchanged on 6th August (and subsequently 16th September). It also kept
unchanged the level of quantitative easing at £745bn. Its forecasts were optimistic in
terms of three areas:
a. The fall in GDP in the first half of 2020 was revised from 28% to 21.8%. This is still
one of the largest falls in output of any developed nation. However, it is only to be
expected as the UK economy is heavily skewed towards consumer-facing services
– an area which was particularly vulnerable to being damaged by lockdown.
b. The peak in the unemployment rate was 7½% by Q4 2020.
c. It forecast that there would be excess demand in the economy by Q3 2022 causing
CPI inflation to rise above the 2% target in Q3 2022. Nevertheless, even if the Bank
were to leave policy unchanged, inflation was still projected to be above 2% in
2023.
1.2 The MPC also stated that negative interest rates would not be used, at least in the
next six months or so. It suggested that while negative rates can work in some
circumstances, it would be “less effective as a tool to stimulate the economy” at this
time when banks are worried about future loan losses. It also has “other instruments
available”, including QE and the use of forward guidance.
1.3 The MPC expected the £300bn of quantitative easing purchases announced between
its March and June meetings to continue until the “turn of the year”. This implies that
the pace of purchases will slow further to about £4bn a week, down from £14bn a
week at the height of the crisis and £7bn more recently.
1.4 In conclusion, this would indicate that the Bank could now pause, as the economy
was recovering better than expected. However, the minutes of the meetings had
multiple references to downside risks, which were judged to persist both in the short
and medium term, including second waves of the virus. However, rather than a
national lockdown, as in March, any spikes in virus infections are now likely to be dealt
with by localised measures and this should limit the amount of economic damage
caused. In addition, Brexit uncertainties ahead of the year-end deadline are likely to
be a drag on recovery. The wind down of the initial furlough scheme through to the
end of October is another development that could cause the Bank to review the need
for more support for the economy later in the year.
1.5 Overall, the pace of recovery is not expected to be in the form of a rapid V shape, but
a more elongated and prolonged one after a sharp recovery in June through to August
which left the economy 11.7% smaller than in February. The last three months of 2020
are now likely to show no growth as consumers will probably remain cautious in
spending and uncertainty over the outcome of the UK/EU trade negotiations

Page 67

ANNEX C
concluding at the end of the year. If the Bank felt it did need to provide further support
to recovery, then it is likely that the tool of choice would be more QE.

1.6 There is also likely to be a reversal of globalisation as this crisis has shown up how
vulnerable long-distance supply chains are. On the other hand, digital services are
one area that has already seen huge growth.
1.7 The Financial Policy Committee (FPC) report on 6th August revised down their
expected credit losses for the banking sector to “somewhat less than £80bn”. It stated
that in its assessment “banks have buffers of capital more than sufficient to absorb
the losses that are likely to arise under the MPC’s central projection”. The FPC stated
that for real stress in the sector, the economic output would need to be twice as bad
as the MPC’s projection, with unemployment rising to above 15%.
USA
1.8 Performance of the US Economy was stronger than expected. With the number of
new daily coronavirus infections beginning to abate, recovery from its contraction this
year should continue over the coming months and employment growth should also
pick up again. However, growth will be dampened by continuing outbreaks of the virus
in some states leading to fresh localised restrictions. At its end of August meeting, the
Fed amended its inflation target to maintaining an average of 2% over an unspecified
time period. This change is aimed to provide more stimulus for economic growth and
higher levels of employment and to avoid the danger of getting caught in a deflationary
“trap” like Japan. It is to be noted that inflation has actually been under the 2% target
significantly for most of the last decade so financial markets took note that higher
levels of inflation are likely to be in the pipeline. The Fed also called on Congress to
end its political disagreement over providing more support for the unemployed as
there is a limit to what monetary policy can do compared to more directed central
government fiscal policy. The FOMC’s updated economic and rate projections in midSeptember showed that officials expect to leave the fed funds rate at near-zero until
at least end-2023 and probably for another year or two beyond that.

EUROZONE
1.9 The economy was recovering well towards the end of Q2 after a sharp drop in GDP.
However, the second wave of the virus affecting some countries could cause a
significant slowdown in the pace of recovery, especially in countries more dependent
on tourism. The fiscal support package, agreed by the EU after prolonged
disagreement between various countries, is unlikely to provide significant support and
quickly enough to make an appreciable difference in weaker countries. The ECB has
been struggling to get inflation up to its 2% target and it is therefore expected that it
will have to provide more monetary policy support through more quantitative easing
purchases of bonds in the absence of sufficient fiscal support.

Page 68

ANNEX C
CHINA
1.10 After a concerted effort to get on top of the virus outbreak in Q1, economic recovery
was strong in Q2 and has enabled it to recover all of the contraction in Q1. However,
this was achieved by major central government funding of yet more infrastructure
spending. After years of growth having been focused on this same area, any further
spending in this area is likely to lead to increasingly weaker economic returns. This
could, therefore, lead to a further misallocation of resources which will weigh on
growth in future years.
JAPAN
1.11 There are some concerns that a second wave of the virus is gaining momentum and
could dampen economic recovery from its contraction of 8.5% in GDP. It has been
struggling to get out of a deflation trap for many years and to stimulate consistent
significant GDP growth and to get inflation up to its target of 2%, despite huge
monetary and fiscal stimulus. It is also making little progress on fundamental reform
of the economy. The resignation of Prime Minister Abe is not expected to result in any
significant change in economic policy.
WORLD GROWTH
1.12 Latin America and India are currently hotspots for virus infections. World growth will
be in recession this year. Inflation is unlikely to be a problem for some years due to
the creation of excess production capacity and depressed demand caused by the
coronavirus crisis.

Page 69

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

PART A:

MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

19 NOVEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

HEAD OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TITLE OF REPORT:

CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS AND COMPLIMENTS Q2 2020/21

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To provide an update on the customer complaints and compliments received in
2020/21 to the end of the quarter 2 reporting period.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

It is recommended to:
(i)

Note the report on the complaints and compliments received up to the end of
quarter 2 of the reporting cycle.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

To monitor the numbers of complaints received, the departments affected and identify
any trends in the complaints data.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

Potential reputational damage from upheld decision notices following investigation by
the Local Government Ombudsman into customer complaints.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

None

6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The customer complaints and compliments received form an important part of the
feedback process for the Council to learn from any issues raised and improve how we
deliver our services. When analysing the customer complaints and compliments, they
should be read in conjunction with each other to gain a full picture of the feedback
received.
COMPLAINTS

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 71

19 NOVEMBER 2020

6.2

The Council operates a two stage internal complaints process to respond to the issues
raised by complainants. The first stage is an initial response by the applicable line
manager or service unit manager. If the complainant is not satisfied with the response
they receive, then they can move to Stage 2, which is investigated and answered by
the relevant Head of Service.

6.3

Following this Stage 2 response, there is the option to then go to the Local Government
and Social Care Ombudsman if they remain dissatisfied. The Ombudsman is a free
and impartial service, but will generally only consider complaints that have been
through the internal two stage process at the Council first.

6.4

The table below compares the number of corporate complaints received by service
area in the 2020/21 year to date to the same time period in 2019/20.

Department

Community Team
Corporate Governance
Customer Services
Economic Development
Environmental Health
Facilities
Forward Planning
Housing
Human Resources
ICT
Legal
Other
Planning and Regulatory Services
Revenues and Benefits
Ryecare
Streetscene
TOTAL

2020/21
Complaints
received
Average
from
response
01/04/2020
time
to
30/09/2020
0
N/A
0
N/A
2
5.50 days
2
11.50 days
1
5 days
0
N/A
0
N/A
3
9 days
0
N/A
0
N/A
0
N/A
1
15 days
2
5.50 days
5
5.80 days
0
N/A
8
5.33 days
24
6.79 days

2019/20
Complaints
received
Average
from
response
01/04/2019
time
to
30/09/2019
4
4.5 days
0
N/A
1
5 days
0
N/A
1
16 days
0
N/A
0
N/A
3
9.67 days
0
N/A
0
N/A
1
11 days
0
N/A
10
17.10 days
5
3.80 days
0
N/A
10
4.30 days
35
9.03 days

6.5

The number of complaints received so far in 2020/21 is significantly lower than the
number received at the same time last year. It is felt that the lockdown period has led
to a reduction in citizens contacting the authority generally for non-emergency
enquiries.

6.6

From the complaints received this year, twenty three (96%) have been dealt with under
stage 1 of the complaints process, with just one complaint in this time period remaining
dissatisfied at stage 1 and advancing on to stage 2.

6.7

The average response time for stage 1 complaints in the year to date is 6.79 working
days. This is an improvement in response time of 2.24 days in comparison to the same
period last year and is within the 15 day maximum turnaround time for complaint
responses that require further investigation to provide a full response to. The one Stage
2 complaint received was responded to in 9 working days. The high response rate for
the complaints received in Economic Development was down to one complaint that
took 17 days to respond and an other complaint that took 15 days to respond to. These

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 72

19 NOVEMBER 2020

were both delayed due to the enquiries that had to be undertaken to gather further
information into the complaints.
6.8

Examples of the lessons learned from the complaints received up to the end of quarter
2 this year are included at Appendix 2 to show the actions taken to remedy complaints
received.
COMPLIMENTS

6.9

The number of service compliments received in the 2020/21 year up to the end of
September 2020 and a comparison with the 2019/20 is as follows:
Department

Business Support Grants
(Economic Development /
Revenues and Benefits)
Community Team
Corporate Governance (was
Business & Democracy)
Customer Services
Environmental Health
Facilities
Forward Planning
Housing
Human Resources
ICT
Legal
Other
Planning and Regulatory
Services
Revenues and Benefits
Ryecare
Streetscene
TOTAL

2020/21 compliments
received from 01/04/2020 to
30/09/2020
12

2019/20 compliments
received from 01/04/2019 to
30/09/2019
-

3
0

0
3

5
0
2
0
3
0
0
0
0
0

1
0
7
0
2
0
0
0
0
1

5
1
26
57

2
3
0
19

6.10

The main topics of the compliments received by citizens during the year so far relate
to support given in the response to Covid-19, in particular the grant help for local
businesses, the work of Streetscene in continuing to provide refuse and recycling
collections and providing temporary accommodation for those who had become
homeless during the pandemic.

6.11

Examples of some of the compliments include:
“I would like to thank you for the grant issued to us recently. It is a much needed lifeline and greatly appreciated.”
“We've lived in countless places and I've never known bin men as brilliant as the ones
here are. They're always accommodating and helpful. A breath of fresh air and a credit
to the Council.”
“I would like to take this opportunity to say a really big thank you to your recycle team.”
“Thank you so much for all your assistance, and patience! This will make a massive
difference, to us and our clients, and it would not have happened without your help. I

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 73

19 NOVEMBER 2020

really appreciate it.”
6.12

Strategic Management Board have identified an underreporting of the service
compliments received, and officers are investigating ways of better reflecting the
positive feedback received in this report for future meetings.

6.13

Officers are reviewing the Compliments, Complaints and Feedback procedure in place
for dealing with complaints, compliments and feedback received by the council. During
the Covid-19 response this year, it has been clear that it is important to have a robust
feedback procedure that is easy to follow, makes clear the standards we expect and
the way we will consider complaints. As part of the review, officers are following the
good practice guidance set out by the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman
and have undertaken a comparative benchmarking exercise to show the complaint
timescales by other Local Authorities shown at Appendix 3. Following any feedback
received from the committee, the revised procedure will be implemented and follow up
training given to service managers on good practice in handling complaints and how
to respond effectively, delivered by the Local Government and Social Care
Ombudsman.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
None
b)

Legal
No direct implications

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime &
Disorder)
None

Simon Copley
Head of Corporate Governance
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Will Baines, Senior Corporate Governance Officer
01653 600666 ext: 43228
will.baines@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
RDC Comments, Compliments and Complaints procedure

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 74

19 NOVEMBER 2020

Appendix 1

Service Complaints v Compliments received from 1 April to 30 September 2020
30

25

20

15

Page 75

10

5

0

Complaints received

Compliments received

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 2
Lessons learned from complaints received
Complaint

Description

Closure of public toilets

Frustration with the closure of the public toilets Community Team

Page 77

Licence for funfair

Department

Questioned why a licence had been given for a
funfair to take place with the restrictions on
Environmental Health
meeting in groups and social distancing.

Lack of contact from Ryedale
Resident did not receive notification to register
District Council before the closure
for the latest collective switching auction
Housing
of the last round of the Collective
despite being involved in previous auctions
Switching auction

Lessons Learned
Explanation that we are trying to strike a
delicate balance for our citizens, as some
people are asking us to keep amenities
closed and others are asking us to open our
amenities. As a result of feedback received,
we have begun to open toilets on market
days, as this has been a way we can ensure
the health and safety of our citizens and
visitors. Assurance given that the feedback
has been taken onboard as part of ongoing
risk assessments of the public conveniences

Complainant informed that the travelling fun
fair did not require a licence to operate and
did not receive any type of licence or
endorsement from Ryedale District Council.
Events of this nature are not strictly prohibited
at this moment in time by any Coronavirus
Restriction Regulations and can go ahead
provided they are conducted in a COVID-19
secure way.

Apology given for any distress caused.
Choices 4 Energy to notify resident of future
auctions

Appendix 2
Lessons learned from complaints received
Complaint

Description

Ongoing issues with waste and
recycling collection

Resident had reported non-collection of bins
on three separate occasions since the
collection date 1st September.Also, when the
Streetscene
bins have been emptied, they have been left
next to or in the highway and there is a risk an
accident occuring

Site visit to property undertaken and agreed
future collection point for waste and recycling.
The InCab technology system in vehicles has
been updated to this effect. Given the extra
waste and circumstances referenced in the
complaint, the RDC Commercial Waste
service was also suggested as a potential
solution.

Vehicle blocking access to
property

Driveway blocked so unable to get vehicle in
and out of property for an hour.

Apology given. Blocking of access to property
was entirely unintentional.

Department

Lessons Learned

Page 78
Streetscene

Appendix 3 – Complaint response times across North Yorkshire councils

Response Time in Working Days

Page 79

District

Acknowledgement

Stage 1

Stage 2

Craven

5

10

Not specified

Hambleton

Upon receipt

10

10

Harrogate

5

10

30

NYCC

5

15

30

Richmondshire

3

15

15

Ryedale (Revised)

Upon receipt

10

20

Scarborough

Upon receipt

20

20

Selby

5

20

20

York

Upon receipt

5

15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
Policy and Resources Committee
Held as a virtual meeting
on Thursday 12 November 2020
Present
Councillors Joy Andrews, Arnold (Vice-Chairman), Burr MBE, Clark, Delaney, Duncan
(Chairman), Frank, Graham, MacKenzie (Substitute) and Riby
Overview & Scrutiny Committee Observers: Councillors Raper, Garbutt Moore and Keal
In Attendance
Stacey Burlet, Andrew Ellis, Anton Hodge, Barry Khan, Emma Lawer, Keeley Metcalfe, Marcus
Lee, Glen McCusker, Christine Phillipson, Phillip Spurr, Ellen Walker, Margaret Wallace and
Louise Wood

Minutes

1

Apologies for absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Docwra, Councillor Mackenzie
substituted.

2

Declarations of Interest
No interests were declared.

3

Minutes of the meeting held on 24 September 2020
Decision
That the minutes of the Policy and Resources Committee held on 24 September 2020
be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record, subject to an amendment to
the title of minute 140 to include reference to the policies approved.
Voting record
7 For
3 Abstentions

4

Minutes from the Local Plan Working Party held on 21 October 2020
The minutes of the Local Plan Working Party held on 21 October 2020 were received.

5

Recommendations from Grants Working Party held on 3 November 2020
Councillor Arnold proposed and Councillor Duncan seconded the following
amendment:
That the recommendation in respect of the award for Next Steps is amended to 25% of
total project costs.
Resolved

Policy and Resources Committee

1

Page 81

Thursday 12 November 2020

Upon being put to the vote to the amendment was carried.
Voting record
Unanimous
Decision
That the recommendations of the Grants Working Party held on 3 November 2020 be
approved, subject to the amendment to award Next Steps 25% of total project costs.
Voting record
Unanimous

6

Recommendations from the Constitution Working Party held on 9 November
2020
Recommendation
Council is recommended to approve the Leader and Deputy Leader elements of the
motion, as amended.
Voting record
5 For
5 Against
Chair’s casting vote – For
Recorded vote
For
Councillors Arnold, Delaney, Duncan, Graham and Mackenzie
Against
Councillors J Andrews, Burr, Clark, Frank and Riby

7

Test and Trace Support Payments
The Committee level decision made under urgency powers was received and the
Constitutional requirement was met.

8

Urgent Business
There was one item of urgent business regarding the budget to bring full LGR
proposals to completion. The reason for the urgency was that, following a decision
made at Full Council on 5 November 2020 to submit outline proposals for local
government reform, a decision was required at this meeting before the deadline
imposed by Government.

PART 'A' ITEMS - MATTERS TO BE DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS OR
MATTERS DETERMINED BY COMMITTEE

9

2019-20 Statement of Accounts
Considered – report for the Chief Finance Officer (s.151)

Policy and Resources Committee

2

Page 82

Thursday 12 November 2020

Councillor Clark proposed and Councillor J Andrews seconded the following
amendment:
That the Annual Governance Statement be amended to include a target date of 31
March 2021 for the proposed ‘review of previous Biodiversity Action Plan’.
Resolved
Upon being put to the vote the amendment was carried.
Voting record
Unanimous
Councillor Clark proposed and Councillor J Andrews seconded the following
amendment:
That, in relation to the ‘HR policies and procedures – review and approval’ Control
Issue, the Annual Governance Statement be amended be include ‘Action plan towards
developing level for the Equality Framework for Local Government’ as an Action
Proposed, with a target date of 31 March 2021.
Resolved
Upon being put to the vote the amendment was carried.
Voting record
Unanimous
Decision
That members:
approve the 2019-20 Statement of Accounts (Appendix A of the report), including
the Annual Governance Statement, as amended
authorise the Chief Finance Officer (s151) and the Chairman of the Policy &
Resources Committee to sign the letter of representation (Appendix B of the
report)
note the External Auditors’ Audit Findings ISA 260 Document (Appendix C of the
report); and
that delegated authority is given to the s151 officer in consultation with the
Chairman of Policy and Resources to approve any further non-material
adjustments required to the Statement of Accounts as a result of the external audit
Voting record
Unanimous

10

HR Policy Revision - Capability and Disciplinary Policies
Considered – report of the Head of Human Resources
Councillor Clark proposed and Councillor J Andrews seconded the following motion:
That this item is referred to Full Council.

Policy and Resources Committee

3

Page 83

Thursday 12 November 2020

Resolved
Upon being put to the vote the amendment was lost.
Voting record
5 For
5 Against
Chair’s casting vote – Against
Decision
The revised policies are agreed for implementation.
Voting record
Unanimous

11

Removal of Restriction on Sale of Property
Considered – report of the Programme Director for Economic Development, Business
& Partnerships
Councillor Clark proposed and Councillor J Andrews seconded the following
amendment:
Delete the second bullet point from beginning to end.
Resolved
Upon being put to the vote, the amendment was lost.
Voting record
5 For
5 Against
Chair’s casting vote – Against
Councillor Frank proposed and Councillor Clark seconded the following amendment:
That the second bullet point be amended to include consultation with the Director of
Planning at the North York Moors National Parks Authority.
Upon being put to the vote the amendment was lost.
Voting record
5 For
5 Against
Chair’s casting vote – Against
Decision


the council’s guidance on the removal of s.157 restrictions is amended in line with
the proposed wording set out at s.6.4 of the report

Policy and Resources Committee

4

Page 84

Thursday 12 November 2020



any future decisions on the lifting of a s157 restriction be delegated to the
Programme Director for Economic Development, Business and Partnerships, in
consultation with the Chair of the Policy & Resources Committee

Voting record
8 For
1 Against
1 Abstention

12

Appointment of Working Parties and Sub-Committees
This item of business was deferred until the next meeting of the Policy and Resources
Committee.

PART 'B' ITEMS - MATTERS REFERRED TO COUNCIL

13

Timetable of Meetings 2020-21
Considered – report of the Head of Corporate Governance
Recommendation
Council is recommended to approve the timetable of meetings, attached as Annex A to
the report, as a basis for working in 2021-22.
Voting record
Unanimous

14

HR Policy Revision - Recruitment Policy
Considered – report of the Head of Human Resources
Recommendation
The revised policy is agreed for implementation.
Voting record
Unanimous

15

HR Policy Revision - Pay Policy
Considered – report of the Head of Human Resources
Recommendation
The revised policy is agreed for implementation.
Voting record
Unanimous

16

Localisation of Council Tax Support 2021/2022 Scheme

Policy and Resources Committee

5

Page 85

Thursday 12 November 2020

Considered – report of the Chief Finance Officer (s.151)
Councillor Clark proposed and Councillor J Andrews seconded the following
amendment:
Add ‘apart from increased discount for families with 3 or more children’ to
recommendation (i)
Resolved
Upon being put to the vote, the amendment was lost.
Voting record
4 For
5 Against
1 Abstention
Recommendation
(i)
(ii)

a Local Council Tax Support Scheme for 2021/2022 which is unchanged from
2020/2021; and
to authorise the Section 151 Officer in consultation with the Chairman of Policy
and Resources Committee to undertake the necessary consultation work to
design a scheme for 2022/2023, in light of the experience in previous years, to
be presented to Policy and Resources Committee in November 2021.

Voting record
6 For
3 Abstentions

17

Treasury Management Annual Report 2019-20
Considered – report of the Chief Finance Officer (s.151)
Recommendation
Council is recommended to:
(i)

Note the annual treasury management report for 2019/20, with thanks to
Officers; and

(ii)

Approve the actual 2019/20 prudential and treasury indicators in this report.

Voting record
Unanimous

18

Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring - Q2 2020/21
Considered – report of the Chief Finance Officer (s.151)
Recommendation
It is recommended that Council:

Policy and Resources Committee

6

Page 86

Thursday 12 November 2020

i)

Notes the contents of the report.

Voting record
Unanimous

19

Ryedale's Financial Strategy 2021-25
Considered – report of the Chief Finance Officer (s.151)
Recommendation
The Council is asked to note the content of Appendix 1 of the report which form the
basis of the Council’s Financial Strategy. This paper builds on that presented in
September to Full Council.
Members are also asked to consider and approve the proposed areas for consultation
with the public, as set out in Appendix 2 of the report.
Voting record
Unanimous

20

To Consider the Submission to Government of the York and North Yorkshire
Devolution Asks
Considered – report of the Programme Director – Economic Development, Business
and Partnerships
Recommendation
It is recommended to Council that:
(i)

Agreement is given to submission of the York and North Yorkshire devolution
asks to Government, so that devolution negotiations can commence.

Voting record
6 For
2 Against
2 Abstentions

21

Exempt information
Resolved
To exclude the press and public from the meeting for discussion of the following item
23 (Financial Support for Continued Leisure Provision in Ryedale) as provided by
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, as it
contains information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information).

Policy and Resources Committee

7

Page 87

Thursday 12 November 2020

The public interest test has been considered and, in all the circumstances of the case,
the public interest in maintaining the exemption is considered to outweigh the public
interest in disclosing the information.

22

Financial Support for Continued Leisure Provision in Ryedale
Considered – report of the Programme Director – Economic Development, Business
and Partnerships.
The item was referred to the Full Council meeting to be held on 3 December 2020, to
enable Officers to obtain further information.

23

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.
This item was taken under item 9.
Considered – report of the Head of Communications, Technologies and Business
Transformation
Decision
(i)

A budget of £49k be set aside from reserves to funding Ryedale District
Council’s contribution to the cost of bringing a full proposal for local government
reorganisation before government by 9 December.

(ii)

Authority be given to the Chief Executive Officer to determine the appropriate
allocation of that budget in accordance with the rules of delegation.

Voting record
5 For
5 Against
Chair’s casting vote – For

Policy and Resources Committee

8

Page 88

Thursday 12 November 2020

